
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page 

(New schools that were not open for instruction for 

the 2018-19 school year are not required to complete 

or submit an annual report this year). 
Created: 07/02/2019 • Last updated: 07/21/2019 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the 

other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover 
page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2019) or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

BASIC INFORMATION 

a. SCHOOL NAME CHARTER SCHOOL OF EDUCATIONAL EXCELLENCE 

(Select name from the drop down menu) 

a1. Popular School Name CSEE 

(Optional) 

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of Regents Authorized Charter School 
June 30th, 2019) 

Please select the correct authorizer as of 
June 30, 2019 or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION Yonkers 

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 01/2004 

e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR 09/2005 

INSTRUCTION 

1 / 7 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

f. APPROVED SCHOOL MISSION (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized 

schools only) 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The Charter School of Educational Excellence’s mission is to develop students who are critical thinkers, 
motivated leaders, and lifelong learners. We are committed to a strong partnership with teachers, 
parents, and community. 

g. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools 

only) 
KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Brief heading followed by a description of each Key Design Elements 

(KDE). KDEs are those general aspects of the school that are innovative or unique to the school’s 

mission and goals, are core to the school’s overall design, and are critical to its success. The 

design elements may include a specific content area focus; unique student populations to be 

served; specific educational programs or pedagogical approaches; unique calendar, schedule, or 
configurations of students and staff; and/or innovative organizational structures and systems. 

Variable 1 

Variable 2 

CSEE offers an extended day of approximately eight (8)
hours. This provides more time to focus on mastery and
enrichment in basic subjects (ELA/MATH). The extended day
also provides the school with additional time to focus on PE,
Health, Music, Foreign Language and Arts program during
the school day. 

CSEE continues to take advantage of the longer school day
through scheduling that allocates extended blocks of time
(100 minutes) for basic subjects, rather than the traditional
schedule of discrete 40 45 minute periods. This offers
teachers and students sufficient and uninterrupted time
blocks to meaningfully explore the basic subjects to ensure
that students develop a much deeper understanding of the
material. 

Variable 3 

Variable 4 

CSEE continues to increase learning opportunities by
strategically deploying Teaching Assistants throughout the
building. Teaching assistants provide more personal attention
to individual students who are falling behind academically
and assist with differentiation and grouping of students
engaged in further exploration of a subject matter. 

CSEE employees standards driven and researched based
curriculum to ensure all students are instructed through
effective programs aligned with State learning standards.
The curriculum provides a rich and more diverse learning
experience. For example, the research based Journeys
(reading program) is used in conjunction with the social
studies McGraw Hill program to provide significant
knowledge of diverse peoples and cultures and engage
students in a rich learning experience. 
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Variable 5 

Variable 6 

Variable 7 

Variable 8 

Variable 9 

Variable 10 

Need additional space for 

variables 

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) 

i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED 

ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2018-19 

SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

j. TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT 

ON JUNE 30, 2019 (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

CSEE continues fostering learning opportunities by offering
students meaningful experiences in the arts. This portion of
the educational program taps the diverse talents of the
student body and exposes them to dance, theatre, music,
and the visual arts. For example, students create paintings,
give theatrical performances, demonstrate artistic
knowledge, or analyze great works of art. This key design
element has been fully implemented. 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

No 

www.charterschoolofeducationalexcellence.org 

753 

753 

k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2018-19 (does not include Pre-K program 

students) 
Check all that apply 

Grades Served K, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 
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l1. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT No 

WITH A CHARTER OR 

EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT 

ORGANIZATION? 

FACILITIES INFORMATION 

m. FACILITIES 

Does the school maintain or operate multiple sites? 

No, just one site. 

School Site 1 (Primary) 

m1. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide the following information for site 1. 

Physical Address Phone Number District/CSD Grades Served 
at Site (K 5, 6 9,
etc.) 

Receives Rental 
Assistance for 
Which Grades (If
yes, enter the
appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No). 

260 Warburton 
Site 1 Ave, Yonkers, NY 914 476 5070 Yonkers K 8 No 

10701 
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n1. Were there any revisions to No 

the school’s charter during the 

2018-19 school year? (Please 

include approved or pending 

material and non-material 
charter revisions). 

ATTESTATION 

o. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. 

Name Cindy Lopez 

Position Superintendent 

Phone/Extension 

Email 

p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board 

President) below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and 

accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, 
and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We 

understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been 

deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our 

charter. Check YES if you agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the stylist on 

your mobile device to sign your name). 

Yes 

Signature, Head of Charter School 
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Signature, President of the Board of Trustees 

Date 2019/07/31 

Thank you. 
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Entry 2 NYS School Report Card Link 
Last updated: 07/02/2019 

CHARTER SCHOOL OF EDUCATIONAL EXCELLENCE 

1. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of 
June 30th, 2019) 

(For technical reasons, please re select 
authorizer name from the drop down 

menu). 

2. NEW YORK STATE REPORT 

CARD 

Provide a direct URL or web link 

to the most recent New York 

State School Report Card for the 

charter school (See 

https://reportcards.nysed.gov/). 

(Charter schools completing year 
one will not yet have a School 
Report Card or link to one. Please 

type "URL is not available" in the 

space provided.) 

REGENTS Authorized Charter School 

https://data.nysed.gov/profile.php?instid=800000057455 

1 / 1 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	
	

	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	 	 	

	
	

	
	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	
	 	 	

Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals 
Last updated: 11/01/2019 

PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS 

Board of Regents authorized and NYCDOE authorized charter schools only. Complete the tables provided. 
List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved charter, and indicate whether 
the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all goals by November 1st. 

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS 

If performance data is not available by August 1st, please state this in the last column and update by 

November 1st. 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academic Student 
Performance Goal 

All students at the 
school will become 

Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress
Toward Attainment of 
Goal 

Goal Met or Not Met Indicate if data is not 
available. If/when
available, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take If Goal Is Not 
Met 

The goal was partially
met. The only
individual grade level
not to achieve this 
measure was the 5th 
grade. 

Efforts Taken: 
CSEE has 
restructured its ELA 
program by hiring 6
experienced teachers
as Academic 
Intervention 
Specialists (AIS
specialists) who
provide small group
support in reading to
all students who did 
not achieve a passing
score on the NYS ELA 
exam in grades 3 8. 

An Academic 
Intervention 
Specialist has been
allocated to the 5th 

1 / 13 



	 	

	

	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	
	 	

	
	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	
	

	

	 	
	 	
	
	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	
	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	
	 	 	

	
	

	

	 	
	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	

1 

Academ 
ic Goal 

proficient in reading
and writing of the
English language. 

Measure 1: Absolute 
Proficiency Each
year, 75% of
students in each 
assessed grade who
have been 
continuously enrolled
in the school for two 
or more years will
perform at or above
Level 3 on the New 
York State English
Language Arts (ELA)
Assessment. 

New York State 
English Language Met Arts (ELA)
Assessment. 

grade cohort to
provide teachers and
students with 
support. This staff
member will work in 
conjunction with the
ELA Director to 
develop and monitor
assessment rigor,
and assessment data. 

An ELA Director & 
Consultant continues 
to provide ELA
coaching to ensure
instruction is aligned 
to common core 
standards, teachers 
are progress
monitoring, using
data to inform 
instruction and 
meeting regularly on
a weekly basis to
develop lessons
focusing on
programming
strengths and
weaknesses. 

CSEE uses the 
following to monitor
progress: ELA Mock
Test, I Ready online
instruction that is 
aligned to CCLS and
state tests. Data that 
is obtained will help
inform instruction. 
Mock exams will be 
given 3 times a year. 

Grade Cohort 
Percentage
Performing At or
Above Level 3 Target
Achieved? 

Please see the 
following chart for
results: 

2 / 13 



	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	
	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	

	 	
	

	

	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	
	 	 	
	
	 	

	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	
	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	

	
	

	 	
	 	 	

	
	

	
	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	

Academ 
ic Goal 

All students at the 
school will become 
proficient in reading
and writing of the
English language. 

Measure 3: Value 
Added to Student 
Learning Each year,
grade level cohorts
of the school’s 
students will reduce 
by one half the gap
between their 
baseline performance
and 75 percent of
students scoring at
or above Level 3 on 
the State ELA 
Assessment. If a 
cohort’s baseline 
performance was
above the objective, 

New York State 
English Language Met Arts (ELA)
Assessment 

Gr. 2017 18 (Target)
2018 19 
3. 81.0% (81.0%)
85.3% Met 
4 84.2% (84.2%)
81.7% not 
met 
5 42.4% (58.7%)
56.7% Not 
met 
6 72.5% (74%) 84.5%
Met 

7 66.7% (71%) 84.4%
Met 

8 67.2% (71.1%)
82.5% Met 

Total 69.0% (72%)
79.4% Met 

The goal was partially
met. The only
individual grade
levels not to achieve 
this measure was the 
4th and 5th grades,
but the 4th grade did
have an exceptionally
high percentage of
students performing
at proficiency on the
state ELA exam. 

Efforts Taken: 
CSEE has 
restructured its ELA 
program by hiring 6
experienced teachers
as Academic 
Intervention 
Specialists (AIS
specialists) who
provide small group
support in reading to
all students who did 
not achieve a passing
score on the NYS ELA 
exam in grades 3 8. 

An Academic 
Intervention 
Specialist has been 
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the cohort will 
maintain or increase 
its performance on
the next 
administration. 

allocated to the 4th 
and 5th grade cohort
to provide teachers
and students with 
support. This staff
member will work in 
conjunction with the
ELA Director to 
develop and monitor
assessment rigor,
and assessment data. 

An ELA Director & 
Consultant continues 
to provide ELA
coaching to ensure
instruction is aligned 
to common core 
standards, teachers 
are progress
monitoring, using
data to inform 
instruction and 
meeting regularly on
a weekly basis to
develop lessons
focusing on
programming
strengths and
weaknesses. 

CSEE uses the 
following to monitor
progress: ELA Mock
Test, I Ready online
instruction that is 
aligned to CCLS and
state tests. Data that 
is obtained will help
inform instruction. 
Mock exams will be 
given 3 times a year. 

% of students 
enrolled at CSEE for 
at least their second 
year performed at or
above level 3 on the 
state ELA exam. 

In addition, the 
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All students at the 
school will 
demonstrate 
competency in the
understanding and
application of
mathematics 
computation and
problem solving. 

individual grades
performed at the
following levels: 

3rd Grade  69.1% 
4th Grade  77.5% 
5th Grade  61.0% 
6th Grade  79.7% 
7th Grade  78.1% 
8th Grade  N/A 
Students took the 
Algebra Regents
Exam 

Total  73.2% 

The goal was partially
met. The only
individual grade
levels not to achieve 
this measure was the 
3rd and 5th grades. 

Efforts Taken to 
Improve: 

CSEE has 
restructured its math 
program to include
more hands on 
activities. 

An Academic 
Intervention 
Specialist has been
allocated to the 3rd 
and 5th grade cohort
to provide teachers
and students with 
support. This staff
member will work in 
conjunction with the
Math Director to 
develop and monitor
assessment rigor,
and assessment data. 

Measure 1: Absolute Particular attention is Academ New York State Proficiency Each given to providingic Goal Mathematics Met year, 75% of support for teachersAssessment students in each as they transition to
assessed grade who a focused, rigorous 

5 / 13 
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have been 
continuously enrolled
in the school for two 
or more years will
perform at or above
Level 3 on the New 
York State 
Mathematics 
Assessment 

curriculum. The 
program is designed
so that teachers can 
easily create the
environments 
necessary for
teaching the
Common Core State 
Standards for 
Mathematics with 
depth without having
to develop new
materials. 

CSEE has hired 6 
Academic 
Intervention 
Specialists (AIS
specialists) who
provide small group
support in math to all
students who did not 
achieve a passing
score on the NYS 
math exam in grades
3 8. 

A math Director & 
Consultant was hired 
to work with teachers 
across all grades to
increase teacher 
competency in math
instruction. In 
addition to providing
PD on a monthly
basis to all grade
level teams, he 
ensures instruction is 
aligned to the new
CCLS, teachers are 
progress monitoring
and using data to
inform instruction. 

CSEE uses the 
following to monitor
progress: ELA Mock
Test, I Ready online
instruction that is 
aligned to CCLS and
state tests. Data that 
is obtained will help 

6 / 13 



	 	

	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	
	

	

	
	

	 	 	
	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	

	 	
	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	

	 	
	
	
	
	 	

	
	 	
	 	

inform instruction. 
Mock exams will be 
given 3 times a year. 

All students at the 
school will 
demonstrate 
competency in the
understanding and
application of
mathematics 
computation and
problem solving. 

The goal was partially
met. The only
individual grade
levels to achieve this 
measure was the 5th 
and 6th grades. 

Efforts Taken to 
Improve: 

CSEE has 
restructured its math 
program to include
more hands on 
activities. 

An Academic 
Intervention 
Specialist has been
allocated to the 3rd 
and 5th grade cohort
to provide teachers
and students with 
support. This staff
member will work in 
conjunction with the
Math Director to 
develop and monitor
assessment rigor,
and assessment data. 

Particular attention is 
given to providing
support for teachers
as they transition to
a focused, rigorous
curriculum. These 
efforts are apparent
in the way lessons
begin with context
based situations and 
progress toward more
abstract problems.
Students and 
teachers are 
supported as they
advance from 
concrete to abstract 
content through the 

7 / 13 



	 	

	

	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	
	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	
	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	
	
	 	
	 	

	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	

	 	
	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	

	 	

4 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Measure 3: Value 
Added to Student 
Learning Each year,
grade level cohorts
of the school’s 
students will reduce 
by one half the gap
between their 
baseline performance
and 75 percent of
students scoring at
or above Level 3 on 
the State 
Mathematics 
Assessment. If a 
cohort’s baseline 
performance was
above the objective,
the cohort will 
maintain or increase 
its performance on
the next 
administration. 

use of models and 

New York State 
Mathematics Met 

math talk prompts
presented in the
Student Editions, and 
sample questions
provided in the
Teachers Editions. 

Assessment CSEE has hired 6 
Academic 
Intervention 
Specialists (AIS
specialists) who
provide small group
support in math to all
students who did not 
achieve a passing
score on the NYS 
math exam in grades
3 8. 

A math Director & 
Consultant was hired 
to work with teachers 
across all grades to
increase teacher 
competency in math
instruction. In 
addition to providing
PD on a monthly
basis to all grade
level teams, he 
ensures instruction is 
aligned to the new
CCLS, teachers are 
progress monitoring
and using data to
inform instruction. 

A math coach meets 
two days a week
specifically with the
7th and 8th grade
teachers to provide
coaching/mentoring
to the new middle 
school math teacher 
to promote improved
test scores on NYS 
math exams this 
year. 

CSEE uses the 

8 / 13 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	
	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	

following to monitor
progress: Math92.
Mock Test, I Ready
online instruction 
that is aligned to
CCLS and state tests. 
Data that is obtained 
will help inform
instruction. Mock 
exams will be given 3
times a year. 

Academ 
ic Goal 
5 

Academ 
ic Goal 
6 

Academ 
ic Goal 
7 

Academ 
ic Goal 
8 

Academ 
ic Goal 
9 

Academ 
ic Goal 
10 

2. Do have more academic goals 

to add? 

No 

3. Do have more academic goals 

to add? 

No 

4. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals 

Organizational Goal Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress 

Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 

In the 2018 19 school 

9 / 13 



	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	
	

	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	
	

	
	

	 	

	

	 	
	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	
	 	 	 	
	

	 	
	

	
	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	
	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	
	 	
	 	

	
	 	

year, CSEE’s daily
student attendance 
rate was 92.5%. 

Org
Goal 1 

Org
Goal 2 

Each year, the school
will have an average
daily student
attendance rate of at 
least 95 percent. 

Each year, 95
percent of all
students enrolled on 
the last day of the
school year will
return the following
September. 

School Attendance Not Met Records 

School attendance Not Met records 

School started a 
school wide best 
attendance 
challenge. School
met consistently with
parents of students
showing increase in
absence patterns.
School sent 
attendance letters 
home to parents. 

In the 2018 19 school 
year, 93.6% of the
students enrolled on 
the last day of the
year returned the
first day of the year
the following
September. 

As documented, the 
percentage of
students leaving
CSEE move out of 
district or out of 
state. Although there
is not much that the 
school can do to 
prevent families from
moving, in order to
address this short fall 
the school will 
provide additional
after school services 
to students and 
provide workshops to
parents to help them
stay in the
community. The
school also hired a 
parent coordinator to
help with parents. 

CSEE has complied
with all applicable
laws, rules and 
regulations. The
Board takes legal 
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Org
Goal 3 

Org
Goal 4 

Org
Goal 5 

Org
Goal 6 

Org
Goal 7 

Org
Goal 8 

Org
Goal 9 

Org
Goal 10 

Org
Goal 11 

Org
Goal 12 

Org 

Each year, the school
will comply with all
applicable laws,
rules, regulations and 
contract terms 
including, but not
limited to, the New 
York Charter Schools 
Act, the New York 
Freedom of 
Information Law, the 
New York Open
Meetings Law, the
federal Individuals 
with Disabilities 
Education Act, and 
federal Family
Educational Rights
and Privacy Act. 

Board Policies and Met Meetings 

compliance matters
very seriously and
has retained outside 
counsel to ensure 
compliance with all
relevant laws. CSEE 
has in place and
maintains effective 
systems, policies,
procedures and other
controls for ensuring
that legal and charter
requirements are
met. CSEE’s staff has 
been trained with 
respect to all
applicable
procedures and
systems. The staff is
empowered to
identify and address
any possible legal or
compliance issues
and to report these
matters to the Board 
and/or its counsel. 
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Goal 13 

Org
Goal 14 

Org
Goal 15 

Org
Goal 16 

Org
Goal 17 

Org
Goal 18 

Org
Goal 19 

Org
Goal 20 

5. Do have more organizational No 

goals to add? 

6. FINANCIAL GOALS 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals 

Financial Goals 

Upon completion of
the school’s first year
of operation and 
every year
thereafter, the school Financia will undergo anl Goal 1 independent financial
audit that will result 
in an unqualified
opinion and no major
findings 

Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress 

Independent
Financial Audit 
Findings 

Goal Met or Not Met 

Met 

If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 

The school has 
undergone yearly
independent financial
audits that have 
resulted in no major
findings. 

Each year, the school
will operate on a
balanced budget and
maintain a stable 
cash flow. CSEE’s 
budget and cash flow
projections will be 
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Financia 
l Goal 2 

determined over the 
summer for the 
upcoming school
year and will both
reflect revenues that 
exceed projected 
expenses.
Throughout the year,
Victory Education
Partners will provide
the board and school 
leadership team with
monthly financial
reports, including
cash flows and a 
report on funds spent
and encumbered, so 
that fiscally sound
decisions may be
made. As such, 
assessments of 
financial viability and
maintenance of 
stable cash flow are 
made at least 
monthly to inform
our financial 
decisions. 

Monthly and weekly
financial statements 
are prepared and
analyzed by the
Controller or Dir of Met 
Accounting and then
distributed to the 
school admin and 
board of directors. 

The school 
maintained a 
balanced budget and
a stable cash flow 
throughout the year. 

Financia 
l Goal 3 

Financia 
l Goal 4 

Financia 
l Goal 5 

7. Do have more financial goals No 

to add? 

Thank you. 
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Entry 4 Expenditures per Child 
Last updated: 07/31/2019 

CHARTER SCHOOL OF EDUCATIONAL EXCELLENCESection Heading 

Financial Information 

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal 
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures 

Per Child): 

1. Total Expenditures Per Child 

To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2018-
19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enrollment. 
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas). 

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the 

Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil 
calculations: Audit Guide available within the portal or on the NYSED website 

at: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/regentsoversightplan/otherdocuments/auditguide2018.pdf. 

Line 1: Total Expenditures 12276673 

Line 2: Year End FTE student enrollment 754 

Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 16284 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

2. Administrative Expenditures per Child 

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures per 

Child” first add together the following: 

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ 
column (from the unaudited 2018 19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) 

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations 

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that must 
be included in this calculation is defined as follows: 

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the 

activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices, school 
operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It also 

includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or corporations 

on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other compensation. Do not 
include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the instructional program. 

Notes: 
The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the Audit Guide 

can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html. 
Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above calculations. 

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services 
Cost (Row) 

Line 2: Management and General Cost
(Column) 

Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 

Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End
FTE student enrollment 

Thank you. 

282039 

858152 

1140192 

1512 
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Independent Auditors' Report 

To the Board of Trustees of 

Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Yonkers, New York 

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Charter School of Educational Excellence (a nonprofit organization), 
which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for 
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Charter 
School of Educational Excellence as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

w w w . c p a t r u s t . c o m 



Other Matters 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The schedule of 
functional expenses is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management 
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 
We have previously audited the Charter School of Educational Excellence’s 2018 financial statements, and we expressed an 
unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 5, 2018. In our opinion, the 
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, is consistent, in all material 
respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 25, 2019, on our consideration 
of Charter School of Educational Excellence’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and 
not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Charter School of Educational Excellence’s internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

New City, New York 

October 25, 2019 

w w w . c p a t r u s t . c o m 



      
                    
                                    
                          

              

          

                          
              
                          

              

  

            
                    
              
                       
                    
                                    

               

          

          

          

              

  

  

  

Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Statement of Financial Position 

June 30, 2019 
(With summarized comparative information for the year ended June 30, 2018) 

ASSETS 2019 2018 

Current Assets 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,803,317 $ 1,807,358 
Due from Government Agencies (Note 3) 303,565 259,678 
Contributions Receivable 13,916 -
Prepaid Expenses 43,215 41,720 

Total Current Assets 3,164,013 2,108,756 

Fixed Assets, Net (Note 4) 13,226,905 13,014,991 

Other Assets 
Escrow - Restricted (Note 5) 76,538 76,410 
Bond Trust Accounts - Restricted (Note 6) 2,646,849 2,306,352 
Security Deposits 24,567 24,567 

Total Other Assets 2,747,954 2,407,329 

Total Assets $ 19,138,872 $ 17,531,076 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Current Liabilities 
Bonds Payable - Current Portion (Note 9) $ 255,000 $ 240,000 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 478,818 228,601 
Accrued Payroll and Related Expenses 1,343,004 1,327,117 
Unearned Revenue 135,934 76,542 
Accrued Bond Interest 135,782 128,582 
Line of Credit (Note 8) - 30,786 

Total Current Liabilities 2,348,538 2,031,628 

Long-Term Liabilities 
Bonds Payable, Less Current Portion (Note 9) 10,206,633 10,433,183 

Total Long-Term Liabilities 10,206,633 10,433,183 

Total Liabilities 12,555,171 12,464,811 

Net Assets 
Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 6,583,701 5,066,265 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 19,138,872 $ 17,531,076 

(3) 

See accompanying notes and independent auditors' report. 



  

                      
                                                     
                                                     
                                                     
                                                           
                                                              

                                                              
                                                              
                                                              
                                                              

                                                                

                      

                                                           

                                      

                                        
                                                     

                                        

                                            
                                                                

                                      

                                               

                                                                  

                                                 

                                             
  

                                                             

  

  

 

Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Statement of Activities 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 
(With summarized comparative information for the year ended June 30, 2018) 

2019 
OPERATING: Without With 

Donor Donor 
PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUE Restrictions Restrictions Total 2018 

Resident Student Enrollment $ 11,801,299 $ - $ 11,801,299 $ 10,536,591 
Food Service - 608,287 608,287 581,092 
Federal Funding - 730,674 730,674 372,127 
State Funding - 257,021 257,021 174,493 
Grant / Contributions 81,052 - 81,052 132,037 
Interest Income 42,912 - 42,912 16,733 
Special Events (Integral and Ongoing) 

Contributions 45,588 - 45,588 50,770 
Special Events Revenue 28,950 - 28,950 32,500 
Cost of Direct Benefits to Donors (8,979) - (8,979) (14,155) 
Net Fundraising Revenue 65,559 - 65,559 69,115 

Fundraising Events (Peripheral and Incidental) 
(Net of Expenses of $1,684) 23,127 - 23,127 6,737 

Total Public Support and Revenue 12,013,949 1,595,982 13,609,931 11,888,925 

Net Assets Released From Restrictions 1,595,982 (1,595,982) - -

Total Support and Revenue 13,609,931 - 13,609,931 11,888,925 

EXPENSES 

Program Services 
Regular Education 10,642,852 - 10,642,852 9,521,432 
Special Education 329,934 - 329,934 350,928 

10,972,786 - 10,972,786 9,872,360 
Supporting Services 

Management and General 1,247,549 - 1,247,549 1,250,029 
Fundraising 10,014 - 10,014 8,962 

Total Expenses 12,230,349 - 12,230,349 11,131,351 

Change in Net Assets before Non-Operating Item 1,379,582 - 1,379,582 757,574 

NON-OPERATING: 
Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets 137,854 - 137,854 -

Change in Net Assets 1,517,436 - 1,517,436 757,574 

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 5,066,265 - 5,066,265 4,308,691 

Net Assets, End of Year $ 6,583,701 $ - $ 6,583,701 $ 5,066,265 

(4) 

See accompanying notes and independent auditors' report. 



      
                    
                          
                
                

                    

                        
                
                                       

                

                                         
                            
                        

                        

                     

                    

          

                  

  

   

 

Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 
(With summarized comparative information for the year ended June 30, 2018) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from Resident Student Enrollment 
Receipts from Grants and Contributions 
Receipts from Other Revenue 
Payments to Employees 
Payments to Vendors and Suppliers 

$ 

2019 

11,740,087 
1,753,751 

117,682 
(6,860,171) 
(4,166,397) 

$ 

2018 

10,593,132 
1,447,599 

118,418 
(6,313,313) 
(3,938,711) 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 2,584,952 1,907,125 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Deposits to Restricted Debt Service Accounts and Other Reserves 
Purchases of Fixed Assets 
Proceeds from Sale of Land 

(340,625) 
(1,868,756) 

891,174 

(289,222) 
(2,999,969) 

-

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (1,318,207) (3,289,191) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Advances on Line of Credit 
Payments of Line of Credit 
Payments of Bond Payable 

-
(30,786) 

(240,000) 

47,659 
(16,873) 

(225,000) 

Net Cash Used In Financing Activities (270,786) (194,214) 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 995,959 (1,576,280) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,807,358 3,383,638 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 2,803,317 $ 1,807,358 

Supplemental Disclosures: 
Cash paid during the year for interest $ 695,588 $ 699,525 

(5) 

See accompanying notes and independent auditors' report. 



  

   

 

              

                          
                              
                                      

                           
                             
                               

                           
                             
                              
                                 

                    
 

          

Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 
(With summarized comparative information for the year ended June 30, 2018) 

2019 2018 

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Change in Net Assets 
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation Expense 
Interest Expense Associated with Bond Cost 
Gain on Sale of Land 

$ 1,517,436 

903,522 
28,450 

(137,854) 

$ 757,574 

965,040 
28,450 

-

Changes in Assets and Liabilities 
(Increase) / Decrease in: 

Due from Government Agencies 
Contributions Receivable 
Prepaid Expenses 

Increase / (Decrease) in: 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 
Accrued Payroll and Related Expenses 
Unearned Revenue 
Accrued Interest 

(43,887) 
(13,916) 

(1,495) 

250,217 
15,887 
59,392 

7,200 

167,849 
25,833 
14,163 

(51,897) 
(73,616) 
76,542 
(2,813) 

Total Adjustments 1,067,516 1,149,551 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 2,584,952 $ 1,907,125 

(6) 

See accompanying notes and independent auditors' report. 



  Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION 

Charter School of Educational Excellence (the “School”) is a New York education corporation incorporated by 
the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York (the "Board of Regents") under Article 56 of the 
New York Education Law. The School is a non-profit 501(c) (3) corporation operating from 260 Warburton 
Avenue in Yonkers, New York. The School educates children in a completely nondiscriminatory and secular 
basis. The founders and supporters of the School believe that access to a public education of high quality for all 
children is the foremost issue. The School was originally chartered during April 2004 and opened in September 
2005 with students from Kindergarten through 4th graders. In January 2018, the School successfully received a 
full five-year charter renewal (its 3rd renewal) from its charter authorizer, the New York State Education 
Department that expires in June 2023, with a maximum enrollment of 729 students in grades Kindergarten 
through 8th. In June 2018, this was amended by the New York State Education Department to include adding 
grades 9th through 12th over the charter period, with a maximum enrollment of 1,129 students. 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Accounting 
The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Revenues are recognized when 
earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. 

New Accounting Pronouncement 
On August 18, 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) – Presentation of Financial 
Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The School has adjusted the presentation of its financial statements 
accordingly, applying the changes retrospectively to the comparative period presented. The new standard 
changes the following aspects of the School's financial statements: net asset classification and a new disclosure 
about the liquidity and availability of resources. Accordingly, the School reviewed all of its net asset 
classification and reclassified $5,066,265 of unrestricted net assets to net assets without donor restrictions as of 
July 1, 2018. 

Basis of Presentation 
The financial statements are presented in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958 dated August 2016, and the provisions of the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) “Audit and Accounting Guide for Not-for-Profit Organizations” (the 
“Guide”). (ASC) 958-205 was effective July 1, 2018. 

Under the provisions of the Guide, net assets and revenues, and gains and losses are classified based on the 
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, the net assets of the Organization and 
changes therein are classified as follows: 

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions and may be 
expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization. The Organization’s board 
may designate assets without restrictions for specific operational purposes from time to time. 

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors, and grantors. Some 
donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by 
the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, where by the donor has stipulated the 
funds be maintained in perpetuity. 

(7) 



  Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Basis of Presentation (continued) 
Earnings related to restricted net assets will be included in net assets without donor restrictions unless 
otherwise specifically required to be included in donor-restricted net assets by the donor or by applicable state 
law. 

All net assets of the Organization at June 30, 2019 were considered to be net assets without donor restrictions. 

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in The 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain 
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Support and Revenue Recognition 
Unconditional contributions are recognized when pledged and recorded as net assets without donor 
restrictions or net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor-
imposed restrictions. Conditional promises to give are recognized when the conditions on which they depend 
are substantially met. Gifts of cash and other assets are reported with donor restricted support if they are 
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a restriction expires, that is, 
when a stipulated time restriction ends or a purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor 
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities 
as net assets released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the same 
reporting period are reported as net assets without donor restriction support. 

Revenue from grants and contracts is recognized as the related costs are incurred under the grant or contract 
agreement. This support may be subject to approved budgets, as amended, and may be subject to possible 
adjustment after audit by the granting agencies. The fiscal periods of these grants and contracts may differ 
from the fiscal year end of the School. Deferred amounts represent cash received in advance of related 
expenditures. 

Provision for Bad Debt 
Receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances. Management 
provides for probable uncollectible amounts through adjustments to valuation allowances based on its 
assessment of the current status of receivables. Balances still outstanding after management has used 
reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School considers all highly liquid investments available for 
current use with an initial period of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Restricted Cash and Escrow Reserves 
Restricted debt service accounts, other reserves and restricted escrow relate to required reserves and escrow 
accounts that are required to be maintained by the School in accordance with the bond indenture and charter 
requirements. 

(8) 



  Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Tax Exempt Status 
The School is a tax-exempt organization under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and applicable state 
regulations and, accordingly, is exempt from federal and state taxes on income. The School has filed for and 
received income tax exemptions in the jurisdictions where it is required to do so. 

The School files the Form 990 in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. With few exceptions, as of June 30, 2019, the School 
is no longer subject to U.S. Federal income tax examinations by tax authorities for the years ended prior to June 
30, 2016. The tax returns for the years ended June 30, 2016 through June 30, 2018 are still subject to potential 
audit by the IRS. Management of the School believes it has no material uncertain tax positions and, accordingly it 
has not recognized any liability for unrecognized tax benefits. 

Fixed Assets 
Fixed assets consist of building, leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment and are valued at cost less 
accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the 
related assets or the term of the lease agreement. Normal replacement and maintenance costs are charged to 
earnings as incurred, and major renewals and improvements are capitalized. Upon disposition, the cost and 
related accumulated depreciation is removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss for the period. The 
School capitalizes assets with cost of $500 and over. Depreciation is calculated based on the useful lives of the 
assets as follows: Building and Leasehold Improvements 20 Years, Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures 3 - 10 Years. 

Functional Allocation of Expenses 
Expenses relating to more than one function are allocated to program service and management and general based 
on employee time estimates or other appropriate usage factors. 

Contributed Services 
Contributed services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets, or that require specialized skills, are provided by 
individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, are 
recorded at fair value in the period received. 

A number of volunteers have made a contribution of their time to the School to develop academic and other 
programs and to serve on the board of trustees. The value of this contributed time is not reflected in the financial 
statements as such services either do not require specialized skills or would not typically be purchased had they 
not been provided as donations. 

Comparative Financial Information 
The June 30, 2018 financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total but 
not by net asset class. As a result, the June 30, 2018 comparative information does not include sufficient detail to 
constitute a presentation in conformity with U.S. GAAP. Accordingly, such June 30, 2018 information should be 
read in conjunction with the School's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018, from which the 
summarized information was derived. 

(9) 



  

        
             
             
          
           

      

 

   
     
       
       
       
     
      

 

Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

NOTE 3 – DUE FROM GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES 

Under the School’s Charter School Agreement and the Charter School Act, the School is entitled to receive funding 
from both State and Federal sources that are available to public schools. These funds include State pupil 
enrollment funds and Federal food subsidies and Title I, IIA, IID, IV and V funds. The calculation of the amounts to 
be paid to the School under these programs is determined by the State, and is based on complex laws and 
regulations, enrollment levels, and economic information related to the home school district of the children 
enrolled in the school. If these regulations, some of which are relatively new in the State of New York, were to 
change, or other factors included in the calculations were to change, the level of funding that the School receives 
could vary significantly. 

Amount due from government agencies and included as revenues in the statement of activities, consist of the 
following as of June 30, 2019: 

Resident Student Enrollment 
Federal Funding 
State Funding 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

$ 20,508 
50,146 
61,430 

132,084 
(20,000) 

$ 112,084 

NOTE 4 – FIXED ASSETS 

Fixed assets consist of the following: 
Land and Building $ 2,478,280 
Building 11,635,875 
Leasehold Improvements 3,533,486 
Construction in Progress 1,787,616 
Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures 1,823,132 

21,258,389 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (8,031,484) 

Total Fixed Assets $ 13,226,905 

NOTE 5 - ESCROW - RESTRICTED 

Pursuant to the Charter Agreement, the School is required to establish an escrow of at least $75,000 over a 3 year 
period. In the event of termination of the charter, whether prematurely or otherwise, the School shall establish 
and follow procedures consistent with those required by Section 2851(2)(t) of the New York State Education Law 
in its use of the escrow. The balance as of June 30, 2019, is $76,538. 

NOTE 6 - BOND TRUST ACCOUNTS - RESTRICTED 

The School have entered into a custody agreement with Wilmington Trust Company as Custodian and as Trustee. 
Debt service reserve represents funds held by Wilmington Trust Company in the name of the School. The School 
will direct educational aid payments to be deposited with the Custodian. The Custodian will pay the Trustee, for 
deposit in the Debt Service Fund, an amount equal to a proportionate share of the next interest payment and 
principal payment on the Bonds for which funds have not already been provided. 

(10) 



  

      
          
          
               

   

Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

NOTE 6 - BOND TRUST ACCOUNTS - RESTRICTED (continued) 

Additionally, the Custodian will pay the Trustee, for deposit in the Repair and Replacement Fund, amounts 
necessary to equal the Repair and Replacement Fund requirement. Any funds remaining with the Custodian 
following such transfers will be transferred to the School. In connection with the bonded mortgage with the IDA, 
the School is required to maintain bond trust accounts which are administered by Wilmington Trust Company. The 
underlying investments in the bond trust accounts at June 30, 2019 consist of money market funds. 

The Schools have entered into a collateral agreement for bond trust accounts not covered under federal deposit 
insurance. Cash is fully insured and collateralized under the bond trust accounts as of June 30, 2019. 

Bond trust accounts consist of the following: 

Interest Reserve 
Debt Service 
Repairs and Maintenance Reserve 
Earnings Fund 

$ 945,699 
939,142 
760,207 

1,801 

$ 2,646,849 

NOTE 7 – RETIREMENT PLANS 

Retirement Savings Plan 
The School offers a 401(k) plan (the "Plan”) for substantially all of its employees. Employees are eligible for the 
plan immediately upon employment and participation in the Plan is voluntary. Employees may contribute up to 
15% of their annual compensation to the Plan, limited to a maximum annual amount as set periodically by the 
Internal Revenue Service. The School matches the employee contribution 100% up to 4% of the employee’s total 
annual compensation. The School’s contribution recognized in the statement of activities was $20,109 for 2019. 
The Plan assets are held in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements. All 
plan assets are held for the exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries. The Plan assets are held 
in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements. All plan assets are held for the 
exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries. The Principal Financial Group administers the plan 
and is the acting custodian of the plan assets. 

New York State Teachers' Retirement System 
Employees of the School are eligible to participate in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System (NYSTRS). 
The NYSTRS is a defined benefit plan covering teachers in New York State, with pensions calculated based 
primarily on the member's years of service and final average salary. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 
2019, was based on 10.62%, of participant salaries. The benefits provided to members of the plan are established 
by New York State Law and may be amended only by the State Legislature. Pension expense was $427,407 for the 
year ended June 30, 2019. 

NOTE 8 – LINE OF CREDIT 

The School has secured a revolving line of credit note from a financial institution in the amount of $500,000. The 
line of credit was established on May 20, 2016 and is due on demand. The interest rate on the variable rate loan 
was 6% at June 15, 2019 with interest payable monthly. The balance due as of June 30, 2019 was $0. 

(11) 



  

 
          
     
          

 

 
      

          
          
          
          
       

 

Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

NOTE 9 – BONDS PAYABLE 

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance 
of $11,735,000 Tax-Exempt Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project) (the 
"Series 2010A Bonds"). The Series 2010A Bonds of $4,940,000 bear interest at 6.00% per annum and principal due 
at maturity on October 15, 2030. The balance of the Series 2010A Bonds of $6,795,000, bear interest at 6.25% per 
annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2040. 

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance 
of $710,000 in Taxable Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project (the "Series 
2010B Bonds"), bearing interest rate at 8.00% per annum. The remaining principal balance was paid off on 
October 17, 2016. 

The proceeds of the Series 2010 bonds are to be used for the following purposes: 

1) the construction of educational facilities. 
2) paying certain prior indebtedness (NCB Capital Impact Loans I and II) 
3) paying certain capital expenditures and capitalized interest during construction. 
4) paying Series 2010 Bond issuance costs. 
5) fund of a Bond Fund Deposit and Reserve Fund Deposit. 

Bonds Payable $ 11,070,000 
Less: Deferred Financing Costs, Net 608,367 
Bonds Payable, Less Bond Issuance Costs 10,461,633 
Less: Current Portion of Bonds Payable 255,000 

Bonds Payable, Less Current Portion $ 10,206,633 

The following is a summary of maturing debt service requirements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 

Year Ending 
June 30, Amount 

2020 $ 255,000 
2021 270,000 
2022 285,000 
2023 300,000 
2024 320,000 

Thereafter 9,640,000 

$ 11,070,000 

(12) 



  

 

         

   
          
          

   

      

   
      

 
                    

                                      
                    
                    
                    

              

Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

NOTE 9 - BONDS PAYABLE (continued) 

The school is subject to debt covenants which are calculated as follows: 

Minimum 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 
Requirement 

1.10 
Actual 
3.16 

Minimum Fund Balance $ 529,636 $ 6,583,701 

The debt service coverage is calculated as follows: 

Increase in Net Assets 
Add Back: Interest Expense 

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 
Net Revenues Available for Debt Service 

$ 

$ 

1,379,582 
695,588 
931,972 

3,007,142 

Maximum Annual Debt Service $ 950,588 

Net Revenues Available for Debt Service 
Maximum Annual Debt Service 

$ 
$ 

3,007,142 
950,588 = 3.16 

NOTE 10 – DEFERRED FINANCING COST 

The school incurred cost of $853,506 related to the Bond offering (See Note 9). The cost are amortized over the 
term of the related debt (30 Years) using a straight-line method. Accumulated amortization at June 30, 2019 was 
$245,139. Interest expense associated with bond costs charged to operations was $28,450 for 2019. 

NOTE 11 – COMMITMENTS 

Occupancy Lease 
The School occupancy leases for the original leased premises and the lease amendment for additional space in the 
elementary school building had an expiration date of June 30, 2024, which expiration date was changed to 
September 1, 2051, by the ground lease executed to enable the financing of the middle school development. The 
term of the annex occupancy lease expired in June of 2018 and is now month-to-month starting July 1, 2018. The 
School leased space for up to 2 years while the high school is being built. The expiration date of the occupancy 
lease dated July 1, 2019 is July 31, 2021. 

Operating Lease 
The School entered into operating lease/service agreements for equipment on April 8, 2016 and March 16, 2018. 
The lease/service agreements expire on July 31, 2019.and March 31, 2021. 

The combined future monthly minimum lease payments as of June 30 are as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30, Occupancy Operating Total 

2020 $ 588,620 $ 11,082 $ 599,702 
2021 690,481 828 691,309 
2022 400,981 400,981 
2023 411,797 411,797 
2024 422,937 422,937 

$ 2,514,816 $ 11,910 $ 2,526,726 

(13) 



  Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

NOTE 12 – CONTINGENCY 

The School participates in a number of Federal and State programs. These programs require the School comply 
with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the program in which it 
participates. All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts are subject to audit by 
government agencies. While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of government and contracts by 
government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in the opinion of the management, have a 
material effect on the financial position or results of operations. Accordingly, no provision for such liability that 
may result has been made in the accompanying financial statements. 

NOTE 13 – CONCENTRATIONS 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to a concentration of credit risk include cash accounts at 
major financial institutions which, at times may exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insured limit of 
$250,000 and Due from Government Agencies. Management believes that there is little risk in any losses and has 
not experienced any losses in such accounts. Management also believes that credit risk with respect to Due from 
Government Agencies is limited since the amounts are due from government programs. 

The School is dependent on various government agencies for funding, and is responsible for meeting the 
requirements of such agencies. If the school was to lose students or the related government funding, it could have 
a substantial effect on its ability to continue operations. 

NOTE 14 – LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 

At June 30, 2019, the School has $3,120,798 of financial assets to meet needs for general expenditures consisting 
of cash of $2,803,317, due from government agencies of $303,565, and contributions receivable of $13,916. None 
of the financial assets are subject to donor or other contractual restrictions. Accordingly all such funds are 
available to meet the cash needs of the organization in the next 12 months 

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the year, the School operates with a 
balanced budget and anticipates covering its general expenditures by collecting sufficient tuition and other 
revenues. The statement of cash flows identifies the sources and uses of the School's cash and shows positive cash 
generated by operations of $2,584,952 and $1,907,125 for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2019 and 2018, 
respectively. 

NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The School evaluates events occurring after the date of the financial statements to consider whether or not the 
impact of such events needs to be reflected or disclosed in the financial statements. Such evaluation is performed 
through the date the financial statements are available for issuance, which was October 25, 2019, for these 
financial statements. 

The School is planning to issue additional debt in mid-November in the amount of approximately $41.5 million, 
subject to a number of conditions, to build a high school facility on the land that the School owns. 

(14) 
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Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Schedule of Functional Expenses 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 
(With summarized comparative information for the year ended June 30, 2018) 

Supporting Services 

Regular Special Total Management Fund-
Education Education Programs & General Raising 2019 2018 

Personnel Service Costs 
Administrative Staff Personnel $ 1,263,328 $ - $ 1,263,328 $ - $ - $ 1,263,328 $ 1,096,309 
Instructional Personnel 3,423,965 145,309 3,569,274 - - 3,569,274 3,317,912 
Non-Instructional Personnel - - - 282,039 - 282,039 304,510 

Total Personnel Costs 4,687,293 145,309 4,832,602 282,039 - 5,114,641 4,718,731 

Fringe Benefits 806,821 25,012 831,833 48,546 - 880,379 738,147 
Payroll Taxes 397,299 12,316 409,615 23,906 - 433,521 396,378 
Retirement Benefits 410,125 12,714 422,839 24,678 - 447,517 386,441 

Total Personnel and Related Expenses 6,301,538 195,351 6,496,889 379,169 - 6,876,058 6,239,697 

Operating Expenses 
Contracted Administrative and Operational Services - - - 428,040 - 428,040 310,000 
Legal - - - 9,275 - 9,275 -
Other Purchased, Professional and Consulting Services 315,839 9,791 325,630 19,004 7,000 351,634 194,243 
Student Services 474,942 14,723 489,665 28,578 - 518,243 487,577 
Insurance 76,162 2,361 78,523 152,428 - 230,951 222,187 
Supplies and Materials 284,090 8,807 292,897 17,094 - 309,991 174,129 
Technology 109,671 3,400 113,071 6,598 - 119,669 64,896 
Occupancy 471,607 14,620 486,227 28,377 - 514,604 542,557 
Utilities 115,720 3,587 119,307 6,963 - 126,270 145,921 
Staff Development 95,920 2,974 98,894 5,771 - 104,665 68,464 
Marketing and Recruitment 15,251 473 15,724 917 - 16,641 9,394 
Auditing Fees - - - 22,000 - 22,000 22,000 
Office Expenses 44,599 1,383 45,982 2,683 2,335 51,000 41,427 
Maintenance and Repairs 447,506 13,873 461,379 26,927 - 488,306 518,291 
Equipment and Furnishings 81,608 2,530 84,138 4,911 - 89,049 92,675 
Transportation 153,839 4,769 158,608 9,256 - 167,864 175,912 
Interest Expense Associated with Bond Cost 26,073 808 26,881 1,569 - 28,450 28,450 
Depreciation 828,029 25,669 853,698 49,824 - 903,522 965,040 
Interest Expense 637,469 19,762 657,231 38,357 - 695,588 699,525 
Other Expenses 162,989 5,053 168,042 9,808 679 178,529 128,966 

Total Operating Expenses 4,341,314 134,583 4,475,897 868,380 10,014 5,354,291 4,891,654 

TOTAL EXPENSES $ 10,642,852 $ 329,934 $ 10,972,786 $ 1,247,549 $ 10,014 $ 12,230,349 $ 11,131,351 

(16) 



  

  

 

 

Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

and Accompanying Notes 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 
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Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ 
PASS-THROUGH 
GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE 

FEDERAL 
CFDA 

NUMBER 
FEDERAL 

EXPENDITURES 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 

TITLE I GRANTS TO LOCAL EDUCATIONAL AGENCIES 
Pass - Through from the New York State 
Education Department 

84.010 $ 315,474 

ENGLISH LANGUAGE ACQUISITION STATE GRANTS 
Pass - Through from the New York State 
Education Department 

84.365 11,388 

IMPROVING TEACHER QUALITY STATE GRANTS 
Pass - Through from the New York State 
Education Department 

84.367 24,658 

STUDENT SUPPORT AND ACADEMIC ENRICHMENT GRANTS 
Pass - Through from the New York State 
Education Department 

84.424 379,154 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 730,674 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE (USDA) 

SCHOOL BREAKFAST PROGRAM 
Pass - Through from the New York State 
Education Department 

10.553 143,224 

NATIONAL SCHOOL LUNCH PROGRAM 
Pass - Through from the New York State 
Education Department 

10.555 409,440 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE (USDA) 552,664 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $ 1,283,338 

(18) 

See accompanying notes and independent auditors' report. 



  

  

 

Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 

NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of Charter 
School of Educational Excellence, under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 
2019. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code 
of Federal Regulation Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the 
operations of Charter School of Educational Excellence, it is not intended to and does not present the financial 
position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the entity. 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are 
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of 
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Pass-through entity identifying numbers 
are presented where available. 

Note 3 – INDIRECT COST RATE 

Charter School of Educational Excellence has elected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate 
allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

(19) 



 

    
        

      

        

586 Route 304, New City, NY 10956 
3113 | 845-638- 845-638-4817 

445 Park Ave, 9th Fl, New York, NY 10022 

212-734-0395 | 212-734-0954 

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and On 

Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

To the Board of Trustees of 

Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Yonkers, New York 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, 
the financial statements of Charter School of Educational Excellence (a nonprofit organization) which comprise the statement of 
financial position as of June 30, 2019 and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 25, 2019. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Charter School of Educational Excellence's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Charter School of Educational Excellence’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the 
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A 
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely 
basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material 
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Charter School of Educational Excellence's financial statements are free 
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

w w w . c p a t r u s t . c o m 



Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

New City, New York 

October 25, 2019 

w w w . c p a t r u s t . c o m 



    
        

      

        

586 Route 304, New City, NY 10956 
3113 | 845-638- 845-638-4817 

445 Park Ave, 9th Fl, New York, NY 10022 

212-734-0395 | 212-734-0954 

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance For Each Major 

Program and on Internal Control Over 

Compliance Required by Uniform Guidance 

To the Board of Trustees of 

Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Yonkers, New York 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
We have audited Charter School of Educational Excellence’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in 
the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Charter School of Educational 
Excellence's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019. Charter School of Educational Excellence’s major federal 
programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned 
costs. 

Management’s Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its 
federal programs. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Charter School of Educational Excellence’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence about Charter School of Educational Excellence’s compliance with those requirements and performing 
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. However, 
our audit does not provide a legal determination of Charter School of Educational Excellence’s compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
In our opinion, Charter School of Educational Excellence complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year 
ended June 30, 2019. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
Management of Charter School of Educational Excellence is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of 
compliance, we considered Charter School of Educational Excellence’s internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program 
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Charter School of Educational Excellence’s internal control over compliance. 

w w w . c p a t r u s t . c o m 



A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program 
that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

New City, New York 

October 25, 2019 

w w w . c p a t r u s t . c o m 



     

    
    

    

    
    

  

      

 
  

    

      

  

   

 

Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified 
Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness(es) identified? _____ Yes _____ No 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? _____ Yes None reported 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? _____ Yes _____ No 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 
Material weakness(es) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

_____ Yes 
_____ Yes 

_____ No 
_____ None reported 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
 for major programs: Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
 be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? _____ Yes _____ No 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster: 

84.424 Title IV Student Support and Academic Enrichment Program 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
 type A and type B programs: $750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 

The audit revealed no findings nor questioned costs. 

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

The audit revealed no findings nor questioned costs. 

_____ 

(24) 











   
   
   

                
                    
                               
                      
                      

                               
 

             
                 
                      

                               

         

                  
                 
                    
                               
                               
                    

                    

 
             
                               
                               

                               

 

 

 

  

Charter School of Educational Excellence 
Statement of Financial Position 

as of June 30 

2019 

CURRE T ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,803,317 
Grants and contracts receivable 303,565 
Accounts receivables -
Prepaid Expenses 43,215 
Contributions and other receivables 13,916 
Other current assets -

TOTAL CURRE T ASSETS  3,164,013 

 O -CURRE T ASSETS 
Property, Building and Equipment, net $ 13,226,905 
 estricted Cash 2,723,387 
Security Deposits 24,567 
Other Non-Current Assets -

TOTAL  O -CURRE T 
ASSETS 

15,974,859 

TOTAL ASSETS 19,138,872 

CURRE T LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 478,818 
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefts 1,343,004 
Current Portion of Loan Payable 255,000 
Due to  elated Parties -
 efundable Advances -
Deferred  evenue 135,934 
Other Current Liabilities 135,782

TOTAL CURRE T 2,348,538
LIABILITIES 

LO G-TERM LIABILITIES 
Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year $ 10,206,633 
Deferred  ent -
Due to  elated Party -
Other Long-Term Liabilities -

TOTAL LO G-TERM 10,206,633 
LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  12,555,171 



               
                               

                               
 

           

 ET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

TOTAL  ET ASSETS

$ 6,583,701 
-

-
6,583,701 

TOTAL LIABILITIES A D  ET ASSETS 19,138,872 



   
   
   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

               
                    
                               
                      
                               

                               

             
                 
                      

                               

        

                  
                 
                    
                               
                               
                      

                    

             
                               
                               

                               

Charter School of Educational 
Statement of Financial Po  

as of June 30 

2018 

CURRE T ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,807,358 
Grants and contracts receivable 259,678 
Accounts receivables -
Prepaid Expenses 41,720 
Contributions and other receivables -
Other current assets -

TOTAL CURRE T ASSETS 2,108,756 

 O -CURRE T ASSETS 
Property, Building and Equipment, net $ 13,014,991 
 estricted Cash 2,382,762 
Security Deposits 24,567 
Other Non-Current Assets -

TOTAL  O -CURRE T 15,422,320 
ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 17,531,076 

CURRE T LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 228,601 
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefts 1,327,117 
Current Portion of Loan Payable 240,000 
Due to  elated Parties -
 efundable Advances -
Deferred  evenue 76,542 
Other Current Liabilities 159,368

TOTAL CURRE T 
LIABILITIES 

2,031,628 

LO G-TERM LIABILITIES 
Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year $ 10,433,183 
Deferred  ent -
Due to  elated Party -
Other Long-Term Liabilities -

TOTAL LO G-TERM 
LIABILITIES 

10,433,183 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 12,464,811 



 

   

               
                               

                               

        

 ET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

TOTAL  ET ASSETS 

$ 5,066,265 
-

-
5,066,265 

TOTAL LIABILITIES A D  ET ASSETS 17,531,076 



   
  

   

  

   
                                       

                                                           
                                                           

                                                
                                                
                                                           

                                                
    

  
 

             
                    

                               

  
                 

                      

    

      

    
                    
                      

                      
                               

                               
                    

      

             

    

                    

  
 

         

Charter School of Educational Excellen 
Statement of Activities 

as of June 30 

2019 
Unrestricted Temporarily

Restricted 

OPERATI G REVE UE
 State and Local Per Pupil  evenue -  eg. Ed $ 11,801,299 $ -
 State and Local Per Pupil  evenue - SPED - -
 State and Local Per Pupil Facilities  evenue - -
 Federal Grants - 730,674
 State and City Grants - 257,021
 Other Operating Income - -
 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 608,287 -

TOTAL OPERATI G REVE UE  11,801,299 1,595,982 

EXPE SES
 Program Services

-

 Total Program Services  10,972,786 

TOTAL EXPE SES  12,230,349 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIO S  (429,050)  1,595,982 

SUPPORT A D OTHER REVE UE
-

TOTAL SUPPORT A D OTHER REVE UE  350,504 

$ (1,595,982) 

CHA GE I   ET ASSETS  1,517,436 

-

  egular Education $ 10,642,852  $ 
 Special Education 329,934
 Other Programs -

 Management and general 1,247,549
 Fundraising 10,014

 Interest and Other Income $ 42,912  $ 
 Contributions and Grants 81,052
 Fundraising Support 88,686
 Investments -
 Donated Services -
 Other Support and  evenue 137,854

 et Assets Released from Restrictions / Loss on $ 1,595,982
   

 ET ASSETS - BEGI  I G OF YEAR $ 5,066,265  $ 



                                  

       

PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTME TS -

 ET ASSETS - E D OF YEAR  $ 6,583,701 $ -



    

           
                              
                              

                  
                  

                              

                  

             
                  

                              

               

                      

                  
                  
                    

                              
                              

                             

                            

             

nce 

Total 

$ 11,801,299 
-
-

730,674 
257,021 

-
608,287 

13,397,281 

$ 10,642,852 
329,934 

-

10,972,786 
1,247,549 

10,014 

12,230,349 

1,166,932 

$ 42,912 
81,052 
88,686 

-
-

137,854 

350,504 

$ -

1,517,436 

$ 5,066,265 

2018 
Total

$ 10,536,591
-
-

372,127
174,493

-

581,092
 11,664,303 

$ 9,521,432
350,928

-
9,872,360 

1,250,029

8,962
 11,131,351 

532,952 

$ 16,733
132,037
75,852

-
-

-
224,622 

$ -

757,574 

$ 4,308,691 



                               - -

$ 6,583,701 $ 5,066,265 



   
   

  

   
                           

                                             
                                
                                
                                
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                  
                                
                                  
                                    
                                            
                              
                                  
                                  
                                            

                                            
   

   
                           

                                
   

   
                              

                                
   

   

                             
    

Charter School of Educational Excellence 
Statement of Cash Flows 

as of Ju 

2019 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATI G ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 1,517,436 
 evenues from School Districts -
Accounts  eceivable (13,916) 
Due from School Districts (43,887) 
Depreciation 903,522 
Grants  eceivable -
Due from NYS -
Grant revenues -
Prepaid Expenses (1,495) 
Accounts Payable 250,217 
Accrued Expenses 15,887 
Accrued Liabilities 7,200 
Contributions and fund-raising activities -
Miscellaneous sources (137,854) 
Deferred  evenue 59,392 
Interest payments 28,450 
Other -
Other -

 ET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATI G ACTIVITIES  $ 2,584,952 

CASH FLOWS - I VESTI G ACTIVITIES  $ 
Purchase of equipment (1,868,756) 
Other 550,549 

 ET CASH PROVIDED FROM I VESTI G ACTIVITIES  $ (1,318,207) 

CASH FLOWS - FI A CI G ACTIVITIES  $ 
Principal payments on long-term debt (240,000) 
Other (30,786) 

 ET CASH PROVIDED FROM FI A CI G ACTIVITIES  $ (270,786) 

 ET (DECREASE) I CREASE I  CASH A D CASH EQUIVALE TS $ 995,959 
Cash at beginning of year 1,807,358 

CASH A D CASH EQUIVALE TS AT E D OF YEAR  $ 2,803,317 



 

                              
                                            
                                  
                                
                                
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                  
                                
                                
                                  
                                            
                                            
                                  
                                  
                                            

                                            

                           

                              

                              

                                  

                             

une 30 

2018 

$ 757,574 
-

25,833 
167,849 
965,040 

-
-
-

14,163 
(51,897) 
(73,616) 
(2,813) 

-
-

76,542 
28,450 

-

-
$ 1,907,125 

$ 
(2,999,969) 

(289,222)
 $ (3,289,191)

 $ 
(225,000) 

30,786
 $ (194,214)

 $ (1,576,280) 

3,383,638
 $ 1,807,358 



   
   
   

 
  

                                                                            
                                                                
                                                                                              

  
                                                  
                                                     
                                                                            
                                                                            
                                                                            

                            
 

                  
                                                     
                                                     
                                                         
                                                        
                                                       
                                                         
                                                         
                                                            
                                                       

                                                                             
                                                     
                                                 

     

Charter School of Educational Excellence 
Statement of Functional Expenses 

as of June 30 

2019 
Program Services Sup 

No. of Regular Special Other Total Fundraising 
Positions Education Education Education 

Personnel Services Costs  $  $  $  $  $ 
Administrative Staf Personnel 14.00 1,263,328 - -1,263,328 -
Instructional Personnel 61.00 3,423,965 145,309  -3,569,274 -
Non-Instructional Personnel 8.00 - - - - -

Total Salaries and Staf  83.00 4,687,293 145,309 -4,832,602 
Fringe Benefts & Payroll Taxes 1,204,120 37,328  -1,241,448 -
 etirement 410,125 12,714  - 422,839 -
Management Company Fees - - - - -
Legal Service - - - - -
Accounting / Audit Services - - - - -
Other Purchased / Professional / 
Consulting Services 315,839 9,791

 - 325,630 
7,000 

Building and Land  ent / Lease 471,607 14,620  - 486,227 -
 epairs & Maintenance 447,506 13,873  - 461,379 -
Insurance 76,162 2,361  - 78,523 -
Utilities 115,720 3,587  - 119,307 -
Supplies / Materials 284,090 8,807  - 292,897 -
Equipment / Furnishings 81,608 2,530  - 84,138 -
Staf Development 95,920 2,974  - 98,894 -
Marketing  /  ecruitment 15,251 473  - 15,724 -
Technology 109,671 3,400  - 113,071 -
Food Service - - - - -
Student Services 628,781 19,492  - 648,273 -
Ofce Expense 44,599 1,383  - 45,982 2,335 



                                                     

                                                
  

679 

Depreciation 854,102 26,477  - 880,579 -
OTHE  800,458 24,815  - 825,273 

Total Expenses  $10,642,852 $ 329,934 $ - $ 10,972,786 $ 10,014 



 

                                      
                                      
                            

                           
                              
                            
                                            
                                

                              
                              
                              
                            
                                
                              
                                  
                                  
                                       
                                  
                                                      
                              
                                  

 
 

 

e 

2018 
pporting Services 
Management
and General 

Total Total 

$  $  $  $ 
- -1,263,328 1,096,309 
- -3,569,274 3,317,912 

282,039  282,039 282,039 304,510
 282,039 282,039 5,114,641 4,718,731 

72,452  72,452 1,313,900 1,134,525 
24,678  24,678 447,517 386,441 
428,040  428,040 428,040 310,000 
9,275  9,275 9,275 -
22,000  22,000 22,000 22,000 

26,004 351,634 
19,004 194,243 
28,377  28,377 514,604 542,557 
26,927  26,927 488,306 518,291 
152,428  152,428 230,951 222,187 
6,963  6,963 126,270 145,921 
17,094  17,094 309,991 174,129 
4,911  4,911 89,049 92,675 
5,771  5,771 104,665 68,464 
917  917 16,641 9,394 

6,598  6,598 119,669 64,896 
- - - -

37,834  37,834 686,107 663,489 
2,683  5,018 51,000 41,427 



                              

                              

51,393  51,393 931,972 993,490 

48,165  48,844 874,117 828,491
 $ 1,247,549 $ 1,257,563 $ 12,230,349 $ 11,131,351 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	

	 	

	

	 	

	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	

	

Entry 5c Additional Financial Docs 
Last updated: 11/01/2019 

The additional items listed below should be uploaded if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the 

items are not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school 
did not expend federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the corrective action 

plan will be submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the 

report); etc. 

Section Heading 

1. Management Letter 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading 

the Management Letter. 
Not applicable 

2. Form 990 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading 

the Form 990. 
Not applicable 

3. Federal Single Audit 

Note: A copy of the Federal Single Audit must be filed with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. Please refer 
to OMB Uniform Guidelines for the federal filing requirements. 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading Not applicable 

the Federal Single Audit. 

4. CSP Agreed Upon Procedure Report 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading Not applicable 

the procedure report. 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

5. Evidence of Required Escrow Account 

Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the 

escrow account per school is $100,000. 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading Not applicable 

the Escrow evidence. 

6. Corrective Action Plan 

A Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations, which must 
include: 

a. The person responsible 

b. The date action was taken, or will be taken 

c. Description of the action taken 

d. Evidence of implementation (if available) 
(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading Not applicable 

the Corrective Action Plan. 

2 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	

Entry 5d Financial Services Contact Information 
Last updated: 11/01/2019 

Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools should enter the financial contact information 

requested and upload the independent auditor's report and internal controls reports as one combined 

file. 

CHARTER SCHOOL OF EDUCATIONAL EXCELLENCESection Heading 

1. School Based Fiscal Contact Information 

School Based Fiscal Contact School Based Fiscal Contact School Based Fiscal Contact 
Name Email Phone 

Paul J. Augello, Jr. 

2. Audit Firm Contact Information 

School Audit Contact School Audit Contact School Audit Contact Years Working With
Name Email Phone This Audit Firm 

Myla Smith 2 

3. If applicable, please provide contact information for the school's outsourced 

financial services firm. 

Firm Name Contact Mailing Email Phone Years with 
Person Address Firm 

1 / 1 



    
          

  

     

           

     
     
                

  

            
          

   

               
            

           
            

New York State Education Department 
Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the 

Board of Regents 

2019-20 Budget & Cash Flow Template 

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates 

1 Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE 
2 Enter information into the GRAY cells 

3 
Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on 
that particular item 

4 

School district per-pupil tuition information is located on the State Aid website at 
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate 
additional districts if necessary. 

5 

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is 
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application 
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would 
reference the applicable page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 



    
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

   
     

  
    
    
    

  

  
    

   
  

 
   

    

      

  
    

   
   

 
     

      
    

 
  

      

  

     
 

 
   

Charter School of Educational Excellence 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

Total Revenue 
Total Expenses 

Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 

REGULAR SPECIAL 
EDUCATION EDUCATION 

14,767,734 88,981 
12,729,255 688,743 

2,038,479 (599,762) 
844 4 

826 4 

OTHER 

-
-
-

MANAGEMENT & FUNDRAISING GENERAL 

- -
- 1,621,810 
- (1,621,810) 

TOTAL 

14,856,715 
15,039,808 

(183,093) 
-

830 

PROGRAM SERVICES 

REGULAR SPECIAL 
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER 

SUPPORT SERVICES 

MANAGEMENT & 
FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL 

REVENUE 

REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate 

Yonkers $16,159.00 

NYC Chancellor's Office $16,152.00 

School District 3 (Enter Name) 
School District 4 (Enter Name) 
School District 5 (Enter Name) 

10,564,586 -
3,133,527 -

- -
- -
- -

13,698,113 

-
-
-
-
-

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

10,564,586 

3,133,527 

-
-
-

13,698,113 

Special Education Revenue 

Grants 

Stimulus 

Other 
Other State Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 

IDEA Special Needs 

Title I 
Title Funding - Other 
School Food Service (Free Lunch) 
Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 

Other 
Other Federal Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 

Contributions and Donations, Fundraising 

Erate Reimbursement 
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, 
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) 
Food Service (Income from meals) 
Text Book 

Other Local Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 

TOTAL REVENUE 

- 24,225 

- -
- -
- -

13,698,113 24,225 

- -
343,010 -

62,214 -
645,397 -

- -
- -
- -

1,050,621 

- -
- -

1,000 -
- -

3,000 -
- 64,756 

15,000 -
19,000 64,756 

14,767,734 88,981 

-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

- -

- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

24,225 

-
-
-

13,722,338 

-
343,010 

62,214 

645,397 

-
-
-

1,050,621 

-
-

1,000 

-
3,000 

64,756 

15,000 

83,756 

14,856,715 

EXPENSES 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 

Executive Management 1.00 200,197 - - - - 200,197 

Instructional Management 3.00 420,000 - - - - 420,000 

Deans, Directors & Coordinators 4.00 359,480 - - - - 359,480 



    
   

 
  

  
  
  
 

 
 

  

 

  

 

   

   
 
   

  
    

   

 
   

  
 

    
 
  

    
     

  

 

    
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

Charter School of Educational Excellence 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT & OTHER FUNDRAISINGEDUCATION EDUCATION GENERAL 

Total Revenue 14,767,734 88,981 - - -
Total Expenses 12,729,255 688,743 - - 1,621,810 

Net Income 2,038,479 (599,762) - - (1,621,810) 
Actual Student Enrollment 844 4 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 826 4 

TOTAL 

14,856,715 
15,039,808 

(183,093) 
-

830 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR SPECIAL 
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER 

MANAGEMENT & 
FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL 

CFO / Director of Finance - - - - - -
Operation / Business Manager 3.00 - - - - 201,440 

Administrative Staff 4.00 - - - - 170,888 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 15 979,677 372,328 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Teachers - Regular 40.00 2,821,163 - - - -
Teachers - SPED 3.00 - 243,338 - - -
Substitute Teachers 1.00 55,000 - - - -
Teaching Assistants 14.00 510,997 - - - -
Specialty Teachers 8.00 637,872 - - - -
Aides 3.00 85,492 - - - -
Therapists & Counselors 6.00 400,508 - - - -
Other - 110,000 - - - -

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 75 4,621,032 243,338 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Nurse - - - - - -
Librarian - - - - - -
Custodian 4.50 - - - - 214,383 

Security - - - - - -
Other 3.00 121,763 - - - -

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 8 121,763 214,383 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 98 5,722,472 243,338 586,711 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

Payroll Taxes 486,410 20,684 - - 49,870 

Fringe / Employee Benefits 993,449 42,245 - - 101,856 

Retirement / Pension 497,153 21,141 - - 50,972 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 1,977,012 84,069 202,698 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 7,699,484 327,407 789,409 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

Accounting / Audit - - - - 26,000 

Legal - - - - 20,000 

Management Company Fee - - - - -
Nurse Services - - - - -
Food Service / School Lunch 510,012 21,251 - - -
Payroll Services - - - - -
Special Ed Services - 70,000 - - -
Titlement Services (i e. Title I) 8,856 369 - - -
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 163,299 7,508 - - 355,143 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 682,167 99,128 401,143 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

-
201,440 

170,888 

1,352,005 

2,821,163 

243,338 

55,000 

510,997 

637,872 

85,492 

400,508 

110,000 

4,864,370 

-
-

214,383 

-
121,763 

336,146 

6,552,521 

556,964 

1,137,550 

569,265 

2,263,779 

8,816,300 

26,000 

20,000 

-
-

531,263 

-
70,000 

9,225 

525,950 

1,182,438 



 
     

    
  

   
  
 

   
 

 
   

 
 
 

   
   

 

  

   

     
   

  

    

  
     

 

 

        

  
    
    
    

    
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

Charter School of Educational Excellence 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

TOTAL 
ENROLLED 

650 4 654 

194 194 

-
-
-

Board Expenses - - - - 40,000 40,000 

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 33,600 1,400 - - - 35,000 

Special Ed Supplies & Materials - 64,756 - - - 64,756 

Textbooks / Workbooks 57,600 2,400 - - - 60,000 

Supplies & Materials other - - - - - -
Equipment / Furniture 89,610 4,120 - - 9,270 103,000 

Telephone - - - - - -
Technology 230,550 10,600 - - 23,850 265,000 

Student Testing & Assessment 15,360 640 - - - 16,000 

Field Trips 28,800 1,200 - - - 30,000 

Transportation (student) 240,000 10,000 - - - 250,000 

Student Services - other 176,640 7,360 - - - 184,000 

Office Expense 53,940 2,480 - - 5,580 62,000 

Staff Development 122,670 5,640 - - 12,690 141,000 

Staff Recruitment - - - - - -
Student Recruitment / Marketing 13,440 560 - - - 14,000 

School Meals / Lunch 3,945 181 - - 408 4,534 

Travel (Staff) 8,700 400 - - 900 10,000 

Fundraising - - - - - -
Other 32,190 1,480 - - 3,330 37,000 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 1,107,045 113,217 96,028 1,316,290 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

Insurance 211,163 9,709 - - 21,844 242,716 

Janitorial 87,000 4,000 - - 9,000 100,000 

Building and Land Rent / Lease 1,259,958 57,929 - - 130,341 1,448,228 

Repairs & Maintenance 87,000 4,000 - - 9,000 100,000 

Equipment / Furniture 17,400 800 - - 1,800 20,000 

Security 408,900 18,800 - - 42,300 470,000 

Utilities 252,874 11,626 - - 26,159 290,660 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 2,324,295 106,864 240,444 2,671,604 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 916,263 42,127 - - 94,786 1,053,176 

DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY - - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES 12,729,255 688,743 1,621,810 15,039,808 

NET INCOME 2,038,479 (599,762) - - (1,621,810) (183,093) 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* 

Yonkers 

NYC Chancellor's Office 

School District 3 (Enter Name) 
School District 4 (Enter Name) 
School District 5 (Enter Name) 

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

OTHER FUNDRAISING 
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
TOTAL 

Total Revenue 14,767,734 88,981 - - - 14,856,715 
Total Expenses 12,729,255 688,743 - - 1,621,810 15,039,808 

Net Income 2,038,479 (599,762) - - (1,621,810) (183,093) 
Actual Student Enrollment 844 4 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment 826 4 830 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



 

  

  

    
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

Charter School of Educational Excellence 

TOTAL ENROLLMENT 844 4 848 

REVENUE PER PUPIL 17,497 22,245 -

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 15,082 172,186 -

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

OTHER FUNDRAISING 
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
TOTAL 

Total Revenue 14,767,734 88,981 - - - 14,856,715 
Total Expenses 12,729,255 688,743 - - 1,621,810 15,039,808 

Net Income 2,038,479 (599,762) - - (1,621,810) (183,093) 
Actual Student Enrollment 844 4 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment 826 4 830 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



 

        

    

 
   

         

  
     
             

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

CAP 

Titla IIA and Title III-ELL 

Student Payments 

NYSTL Textbooks and Software 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 

(1) Executive Director 
(3) Principals - ES, MS, HS 

(1) ELA Director, (1) Math Director, (1) Student Info and Data, (1) Parent Rel. 



         
       

     
    
  

  
     
  
            

   

  

         

 

          

 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

CAP 

(1) HR Director, (1) Director of Ops, (1) Ops Assistant 
(1) Admin Asst-Principal, (1) Admin Asst, (2) Receptionists 

(32) Regular Teachers, (8) Title I 
(1) SPED Director, (2) SPED 

(1) Substitute Teacher 
(14) Educ Assistants 

(6) PE, (1) Music, (1) Spanish 

(3) School Aids 

(1) Psychologist, (1) HS Guidance Counselor, (1) Dean, (2) ELL (2) PT Nurses 

Summer School, After School 

(4.5) Custodians, OT 

(1) Food Service Mgr, (4 @ .5) PT Kitchen Aids 

Health/Dental. Disability/Life 

Financial Mgmt, HR/Benefit, IT Svcs, Admin, Temp Staff, Erate, Other, Contracted 
 



   

   

      

   
   

      

  

     

 
 

            
  

   

 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

CAP 

Teacher Discretionary, Classroom Supplies 

Equpiment, Copier, Educational Software 

Comp Maint, Software, Phone & Data Services 

Student Activities, Athletic Activities 

Office Supplies, Postage, Printing/Copying 

Staff Appreciation, PD, PD Conferences, Tuition Reimbursement 

Advertising 

Other Food Payments 

Other G&A, Subscription, Other Direct Ed 

Workers Comp/Insurance 

Operational Supplies 

Rent, Temp Occupancy, R/E Taxes, Int. Bonds I and I /Cap Intt Bonds II 
Renovations and Repairs 

Electric, Gas, Water, Other 



 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

CAP 
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Entry 8 BOT Table 
Created: 07/02/2019 • Last updated: 07/31/2019 

1. SUNY AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide 

information for all VOTING and NON VOTING trustees. 

1. Current Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member) 

Trustee 
Name 
and 
Email 
Address 

Eduardo 
LaGuerre, 

Sobeida 
Cruz, 

Nadine 
Burns
Lyons,

Carlos 
Medina, 

Position 
on the 
Board 

Chair 

Trustee/M
ember 

Secretary 

Trustee/M
ember 

Committ 
ee 
Affiliation 
s 

Executive 
Committ 
ee, 
Finance 
Committ 
ee, 
Facilities 
Committ 
ee, Bylaw
Committ 
ee 

Academic 
Committ 
ee, 
Fundraisi 
ng
Committ 
ee 

Executive 
Committ 
ee 

Academic 
Committ 
ee 

Executive 

Voting
Member 
Per By
Laws 
(Y/N) 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Number 
of Terms 
Served 

3 

3 

3 

3 

Start 
Date of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

07/01/20
15 

07/01/20
15 

07/01/20
15 

07/01/20
17 

End Date 
of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

07/01/20
20 

07/01/20
20 

07/01/20
20 

Board 
Meetings
Attended 
During
2018 19 

11 

11 

10 

07/01/20 10 22 

1 / 3 

3 

4 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

Jim 
Killoran, 

Dr. James 
Stenerso 
n, 

Lisbel 
Rosario, 

Treasurer 

Trustee/M
ember 

Parent 
Rep 

1a. Are there more than 9 

members of the Board of 
Trustees? 

Committ 
ee, 
Finance 

Yes 2 
07/01/20
15 

07/01/20
20 

8 

Committ 
ee 

Academic 
Committ 
ee 

Yes 1 
07/01/20
14 

07/01/20
19 

10 

Parents Yes 1 
07/01/20
18 

07/01/20
19 

10 

No 

2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response 

relative to all trustees. 

a. Total Number of BOT Members on 
June 30, 2019 

b.Total Number of Members Added 
During 2018 19 

c. Total Number of Members who 
Departed during 2018 19 

d.Total Number of members in 2018 19, 
as set by in Bylaws, Resolution or
Minutes 

7 

1 

1 

7 

3. Number of Board meetings 12 

held during 2018-19 

2 / 3 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	

4. Number of Board meetings 12 

scheduled for 2019-20 

Thank you. 

3 / 3 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Entry 9 - Board Meeting Minutes 
Last updated: 07/31/2019 

Instructions for submitting minutes of the BOT monthly meetings 

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must either provide a link to a complete set of 
minutes that are posted on the charter school website, or upload a complete set of board meeting 

minutes from July 2018 June 2019, which should match the number of meetings held during the 2018 19 

school year. 

CHARTER SCHOOL OF EDUCATIONAL EXCELLENCE 

Are all monthly BOT meeting No 

minutes posted, which should 

match the number of meetings 

held during 2018-19 school year, 
on the charter school's website? 

B. Upload all monthly Board meeting minutes, which should match the number of 
meetings held during the 2018-19 school year. 

Combine all monthly meeting minutes into one .PDF file. 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/110244588/wNFCVDEEJA/ 

1 / 1 



   
 

 

    
  

 
             

    
               

 
    

 
        

                    
             

    
           
   
   
        
          
 

                
    

 
 

      

                     
   

   
   

  
      

 
     

 
 

 
   

        
           
 

   
 

                
         

                
 

    
  

Board of Trustees Meeting 
July 12, 2018 

Attendance: E. LaGuerre, S. Cruz, Nadine Burns-Lyons, Carlos Medina, Jim Killoran, Jasmine Colon 
Absent: Dr. James Stenerson 
Present Non-Board Member: C. Lopez, J. Jacaruso, J. Spina, D. Rendina, C. Goldberg, S. Henriquez 

Call to order: 5:10pm 

Welcome and Introductory Remarks – E. LaGuerre 
• One goal for the Board of Trustees is to expand the Board, increase from 7 to 9-11 Board of Trustee members. Mr. 

LaGuerre introduces Mr. Alan Katz as a candidate as an additional trustee. 
High School Next Steps 

• Going for a height variance for new building being built. 
• Structure of building changed 
• Selling the location on Locust Hill 
• To have application completed by Industrial Development Agency 
• Looking into alternative ways into getting municipal bonds 

Community Open Forum-Mr. LaGuerre provided opportunity for the public to address the board. No comments were 
made from the community. 

ACTION ITEMS 
Resolution 1 2018-2019 Adoption of June 14, 2018 Board of Trustee meeting minutes 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees moves to adopt the Board of Trustee meeting minutes for the June 14, 2018 Board 
of Trustees meeting. 

Motioned by: J. Killoran 
Seconded by: S. Cruz 
Discussion: None 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED July 12, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 2 2018-2019 Adoption of the Charter School of Educational Excellence 2018-2019 School Year Calendar 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees moves to adopt the attached Charter School of Educational Excellence 2018-2019 
School Year Calendar including Board of Trustee meeting and staff Professional Development training dates. The School 
Year Calendar may be amended should any changes be adopted by the Yonkers Public Schools. 

Motioned by: S. Cruz 
Seconded by: J. Killoran 

Page 1 of 50 



   
 

            
  

      
 

     
 

 
 

   
        
           
 

    
 

              
       

 
   

   
                 
       

      
 

     
 

 
 

   
        
           
 

      
        

 
                 

           
            

        
         

           
 

    
   

                   
     

      
 

     
 

 
 
    

        
           

Discussion: CSEE likes to keep the school year calendar to coincide with Yonkers otherwise the students would not be 
provided bussing. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED July 12, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 3 2018-2019 Ratification of Revised Resolution 55 2017-2018. 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees ratifies the attached revision of Resolution 55 2017-2018 that conforms to recorded 
proceedings of the April 19, 2018 of the Board of Trustee meeting. 

Motioned by: J. Killoran 
Seconded by: N. Burns-Lyons 
Discussion: The minutes for the April 19, 2018 meeting reflected a purchase price, the Board of Trustees specifically 
directed that it be listed without a purchase price. The revised resolution omits any reference to a price. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED July 12, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 4 2018-2019 Authorization to negotiate and execute a contract for a Charter School of Educational 
Excellence Hosted Voice over Internet Protocol telephone system. 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees authorizes the negotiation of a contract for a CSEE hosted VOIP telephone system 
for a term of three years with Broadvoice, the company that submitted the lowest cost proposal and provides CSEE with 
ownership of phones at the expiration of the contract. This contract will provide for the installation of 60 phones at the 260 
Warburton Avenue K-8 school facilities, and the expansion of the hosted VOIP telephone system pursuant to the same 
contract by 28 to 60 phones upon the use and occupancy of the high school campus at 226 Warburton Avenue, that is 
expected in the Fiscal 2019-2020 year. The Director of Operations is authorized to execute this contract on behalf of CSEE. 

Motioned by: N. Burns-Lyons 
Seconded by: C. Medina 
Discussion: Difference in cost from what is currently in place $168.00 per month increase, doubling the number of phones, 
conference calls of up to 100 people, web-based system. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED July 12, 2018 

Attest: 

By: ______________________________ Date: _____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 
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Resolution 5 2018-2019 Authorization to submit Verified Petiton for the Sale of 76 Locust Hill Avenue, Yonkers, 
New York to the New York State Attorney General. 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees having been briefed on the need to sell the 76 Locust Hill Avenue property in order 
to fund the costs of developing 226 Warburton Avenue for high school use, and the need for the New York State Attorney 
General to possibly approve the sale, directs the submission of a Verified Petition by the Chairman of the Board of Trustees 
requesting approval for the sale of the 76 Locust Hill Avenue property, if the submission of a Verified Petition is required 
by the New York State Attorney General. 

Motioned by: C. Medina 
Seconded by: J. Colon 
Discussion: This is on record to address what is required by the New York State Attorney General Office. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED July 12, 2018 

Attest: 

By: ______________________________ Date: _____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 6 2018-2019 Adoption of Alan Katz be approved as a member of the Board Trustee for the Charter School 
of Educational Excellence pending New York State Education approval. 
RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees moves to adopt Alan Katz as a member of the Board Trustee for the Charter School 
of Educational Excellence pending New York State Education approval. 

Motioned by: S. Cruz 
Seconded by: J. Killoran 
Discussion: non-voting member until approved; can actively participate 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

Resolution 7 2018-2019 Authorization the submission of applications for tax exempt bond financing of improvements 
consisting of renovation, new construction, furniture, fixtures athletic field, and instructional equipment needed to 
develop 226 Warburton Avenue for high school use at an estimated cost of up to $45,000,000.00 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees authorizes the submission of applications for tax exempt bon financing of 
improvements consisting of renovation, new construction, furniture, fixtures, athletic field, and instructional equipment 
needed to develop 226 Warburton Avenue for high school use at an estimated cost of up to $45,000,000.00. 

Motioned by: C. Medina 
Seconded by: J. Killoran 
Discussion: None 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

Informational Items 
Finance Report- S. Cruz 

• Designer Handbag Bingo- scheduled for October 26th 
• Will have final numbers from Beats & Bites for next meeting 

Academic Report- TABLED 

Facilities Report- TABLED 
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Principals Report- Cindy Lopez 
• Smooth end of year closeout process with staff 
• CSEE in conjunction with CEI was awarded a student support and enrichment grant-focus is effective use of 

technology. 
• 7 DASA incidents reported to the state this year 
• Pre-Service & School year calendar completed 
• Changes to the Teacher Evaluation system for the new school year 
• Directors task assignment list & Rubric for next school year 

Director of Operations Report- Stephan Henriquez 
• Property listing for 76 Locust Hill Avenue is for sale on Loopnet and Costar online advertising platform. 
• North Gate section replaced and repaired and can be closed. 
• Customers Bank remains interested in bridge loan. 
• 1 GIG Fiber internet upgrade was requested and scheduled the week of July 23rd 

BoostEd Finance Report-P. Augello 
• Mr. Augello reviews the two-page financial summary analysis was submitted to the City of Yonkers Mayor’s Office 
• Mr. LaGuerre thanks Mr. Augello for all his time and effort putting together the analysis. 

PTO Report- J. Colon 

• New PTO President for the 2018-2019 school year Ms. Lisbeth Rosario- has great team members working with her. 
• Ms. Colon thanks everyone for the opportunity. 

Chief Custodian Report- D. Pagan 

• Almost completed with stripping and waxing floors. 

Motion to Adjourn- 6:30 pm 
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Board of Trustees Meeting 
August 23, 2018 

Attendance: E. LaGuerre, S. Cruz, Nadine Burns-Lyons, Carlos Medina, Dr. James Stenerson Jim Killoran 
Absent: PTO President 
Present Non-Board Member: C. Lopez, J. Jacaruso, J. Spina, D. Rendina, C. Goldberg, S. Henriquez 

Call to order: 6:05 PM 

Welcome and Introductory Remarks – E. LaGuerre 
• Monthly high school meetings are held with the Mayor, Deputy Mayor, & City Council members. Mr. LaGuerre 

thanks Mrs. Goldberg for assisting in arranging these meetings. A traffic study will be conducted, as this was a 
concern. 

• Large amount of asbestos found in the church building; this is costly to remove. Mr. Killoran requests to look at the 
asbestos bids. 

• Looking into the issue of parking; speaking to Frank Raho regarding paving the property next door to make parking 
spaces. 

• All buses used for the high school will have a pick up and drop off location at the elementary school. The architect 
is looking into possibly putting a curve in front of the high school for buses to park, which will still allow traffic to 
pass on LaMartine Ave. 

• A study needs to be done regarding water pressure. 
• A survey needs to be completed on the church to find out if anyone has been buried on the premises. 
• Local City Council is 100% behind this high school project. The Board of Trustees has extended the invite to Dr. 

Quezada to work collaboratively with CSEE. 
• The Board of Trustees need to come up with different ways to retain CSEE staff, if it can’t be by salaries possibly 

providing other incentives. Mr. Killoran requests a list of how many teachers are communiting from outside of 
Yonkers, where are they communiting from. 

Community Open Forum-Mr. LaGuerre provided opportunity for the public to address the board. No comments were 
made from the community. 

ACTION ITEMS 
Resolution 8 2018-2019 Adoption of July 12, 2018 Board of Trustee meeting minutes 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees moves to adopt the Board of Trustee meeting minutes for the July 12, 2018 Board of 
Trustees meeting. 

Motioned by: N. Burns-Lyons 
Seconded by: J. Killoran 
Discussion: None 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED AUGUST 23, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 
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Resolution 9 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with Arrow Security, Inc. for security services for the 2019 fiscal 
year. 

Resolved: The Board of Trustees authorizes the Charter School of Educational Excellence to contract with Arrow Security, 
Inc. for security services required for school operations at the rate of $19.05 per regular working hour, and $28.57 per 
overtime hour for the Security Supervisor, and at the rate of $18.20 per regular hour and $27.30 per overtime hour for one 
Security Supervisor and four Security Officers in the 2019 fiscal year. 

Motioned by: N. Burns-Lyons 
Seconded by: J. Killoran 
Discussions: The school is satisfied with Arrow Security; requesting a 2% increase effective upon approval of the Board. 
No increase last year. Security guards must be evaluated at the end of every year. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED AUGUST 23, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 10 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with Classico Building Maintenance, Inc. for cleaning services 
for the 2019 fiscal year. 

Resolved: The Board of Trustees authorizes the Charter School of Educational Excellence to contract with Classico 
Building Maintenance, Inc. for cleaning services required for school operations at the hourly rate of $26.50 per hour for the 
shift supervisor, and $20.50 per hour for cleaners for a five hour shift on school days, and as otherwise needed, for the 2019 
fiscal year. 

Motioned by: J. Killoran 
Seconded by: C. Medina 
Discussions: Recommended for $1.00 increase per hour. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED AUGUST 23, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 11 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with D.P. Wolff, Inc. for HVAC maintenance services for the 
2019 fiscal year. 

Resolved: The Board of Trustees authorizes the Charter School of Educational Excellence to contract with D.P. Wolff, Inc. 
for HVAC system maintenance services two times a year needed for school operations at a price of $17,338.90 plus the cost 
of belts and filters for the 2019 fiscal year. 

Motioned by: N. Burns-Lyons 
Seconded by: J. Killoran 
Discussions: For the $17, 338.90 CSEE is getting service to keep an $850,000.00 system working. It covers 3 separate 
units. This is the same authorization as last fiscal year. 
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Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED AUGUST 23, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 12 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with Dr. Meghan Marrero for science academic support 
services. 

Resolved: The Board of Trustees authorizes the Charter School of Educational Excellence to contract with Dr. Meghan 
Marrero for academic support services for science during the 2019 fiscal year at the hourly rate of $112.50 per hour for no 
more than 175 hours of service for the school year. 

Motioned by: N. Burns-Lyons 
Seconded by: S. Cruz 
Discussions: Works with K-8 including preparations for Living Environment regent exam. Increases hands on science 
lessons in the classrooms as well as keeping updated with Next Generation Science standards.  
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED AUGUST 23, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 13 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with Gary Bergman Consulting, Inc. for student information, 
master schedule and student lottery data management and technical assistance services. 

Resolved: The Board of Trustees authorizes the Charter School of Educational Excellence to contract with Gary Bergman 
Consulting, Inc. for student information, master schedule and student lottery data management and technical assistance 
services for the 2019 fiscal year at an hourly rate of $110.00 for no more than 175 hours of service for the school year. 

Motioned by: N. Burns-Lyons 
Seconded by: J. Killoran 
Discussions: Assists with staying in NYS compliance 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED AUGUST 23, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 14 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with Richard Trauner for special education academic support 
services. 
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Resolved: The Board of Trustees authorizes the Charter School of Educational Excellence to contract with Richard Trauner 
for special education academic support services for the 2019 fiscal year at the rate of $700 per day for up to 20 days for the 
school year. 

Motioned by: N. Burns-Lyons 
Seconded by: J. Killoran 
Discussions: Mr. Trauner is the SPED consultant; he is supportive 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED AUGUST 23, 2018 
Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 15 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with Saint Joseph’s Medical Center for occupational and 
physical therapy services. 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees authorizes the Charter School of Educational Excellence to contract with Saint 
Joseph’s Medical Center for occupational and physical therapy services required by CSEE for the 2019 fiscal year at the: 
rate of $63 per 30 minutes per child for individual sessions; rate of $50 per 30 minutes per child for group sessions; and 
$300 per formal evaluation as requested by CSEE. 

Motioned by: N. Burns-Lyons 
Seconded by: C. Medina 
Discussions: Request to look into insurance company picking up the formal evaluation fee. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED AUGUST 23, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 16 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with Center for Educational Innovation for Professional 
Development Services. 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees moves to authorize a contract with the Center for Educational Innovation (“CEI”) to 
provide professional development to the CSEE academic staff during the 2019 fiscal year in the amount of $25,000. 
Pursuant to this contract CEI shall provide 25 days of professional development services to CSEE. 

Motioned by: N. Burns-Lyons 
Seconded by: S. Cruz 
Discussions: This is for Academic Professional Development 
Votes for and against: C. Medina abstained from voting. Unanimous vote by all other Trustees present 

PASSED AND ADOPTED AUGUST 23, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
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Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 17 2018-2019: Authorization to engage Vargas and Rivera, LLP to independently audit the financial 
statements of the Charter School of Educational Excellence. 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees authorizes the Charter School of Educational Excellence to engage Vargas and Rivera, 
LLP, Certified Public Accountants and Consultants to conduct an independent audit of the financial statements and position 
of CSEE as of June 30, 2018 at a cost not to exceed $20,000, and provided further that Vargas & Rivera shall make a 
presentation to the Board of Trustees and allow the Board of Trustees to ask questions regarding their findings. 

Motioned by: N. Burns-Lyons 
Seconded by: J. Stenerson 
Discussions: None 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED AUGUST 23, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 18 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with edIT Support Technology Services for IT Management 
Services 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees authorizes the Charter School of Educational Excellence to renew its contract for IT 
Management Services with edIT Support Technology Services, (“edIT”) for the 2019 fiscal year, based upon the present 
contract scope of work for a price of Nine Thousand Dollars ($9,000.00) per month and One Hundred Eight Thousand 
Dollars ($108,000.00) for the 2019 fiscal year, excluding any out-of-scope work edIT is directed to perform. 

Motioned by: N. Burns- Lyons 
Seconded by: J. Stenerson 
Discussions: Meeting to be held to discuss inventory procedures on technology equipment 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED AUGUST 23, 2018 

Attest: 
By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 19 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with the Center for Educational Funding for grants 
management services. 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees authorizes a contract renewal with the Center for Educational Funding for grants 
management services for title grants at a price of $8,700 for the 2018-2019 fiscal year. 

Motioned by: N. Burns-Lyons 
Seconded by: J. Killoran 
Discussions: None 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 
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PASSED AND ADOPTED AUGUST 23, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 20 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with Jove Pest Control Co. for pest control services. 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees authorizes a contract with Jove Pest Control Co. for pest control services at the cost 
of $1,100 per month for two treatments per month during the fiscal year. 
Motioned by: N. Burns-Lyons 
Seconded by: S. Cruz 
Discussions: Requested to speak with staff regarding leaving food out around the school. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED AUGUST 23, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 21 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with BoostEd Finance for financial services required in support 
of school operations. 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees authorizes a contract with BoostEd Finance for financial services required in support 
of school operations for the 2019 fiscal year, including customized budget forecasting and modeling, preparation of financial 
statements; and cash management and banking support services for the price of $210,000. 

Motioned by: N. Burns-Lyons 
Seconded by: J. Killoran 
Discussions: Thanks Paul Augello for always being available and participating in the high school meetings. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED AUGUST 23, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 22 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with Little Bird HR for employee benefit and payroll tax 
services. 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees authorizes a contract with Little Bird HR to provide services including the provision 
of healthcare and employee benefits administration, and payroll administration and tax services for the 2019 fiscal year for 
the price of $100,000.  
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Motioned by: N. Burns-Lyons 
Seconded by: J. Killoran 
Discussions: None 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED AUGUST 23, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 23 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with Regina Caterers, Inc. for food services. 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees authorizes a contract with Regina Caterers, Inc. to provide breakfast, lunch and 
snacks compliant with the National School Lunch Program for the 2018-2019 fiscal year at the price of $1.33 for each 
breakfast, $2.40 for each lunch, and $0.73 for each snack. 

Motioned by: N. Burns-Lyons 
Seconded by: S. Cruz 
Discussions: None 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED AUGUST 23, 2018 

Attest: 
By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 24 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with Tur-Bus Transportation Corp. 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees authorizes a contract with Tur-Bus Transportation Corp. to provide two buses for 
routes in the Bronx and the city of Yonkers at the rate of $393 per bus per day, and $50 a day for bus monitors, and one bus 
for a route in the City of Yonkers at the rate of $300 per day and $40 a day for bus monitors. 

Motioned by: N. Burns-Lyons 
Seconded by: J. Killoran 
Discussions: It is requested that a letter gets put together and sent to parents asking for $25 per month for Yonkers bus 
students 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

Resolution 25 2018-2019: Adoption of Revised Charter School of Educational Excellence Employee Handbook. 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees authorizes the adoption of the revised Charter School of Educational Excellence 
Employee Handbook effective as of August 23, 2018. 

Motioned by: N. Burns-Lyons 
Seconded by: J. Killoran 
Discussions: Changes and updates were made to keep up with the new Family Medical leave laws 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED AUGUST 23, 2018 
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Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Informational Items 
Executive Session-TABLED 

Finance Report- TABLED 

Academic Report- Dr. J. Stenerson 
• New equipment is installed and ready for use. 
• Requested to develop a policy on how to discard old technology and used equipment. 

Facilities Report- E. LaGuerre 
• Architect to provide the Board of Trustees with a monthly written report of progress with facilities (costs, 

contractors, schedules) beginning next board meeting 

Principals Report- Cindy Lopez 
• Staff returned on August 20th for 2 weeks of Professional Development 
• CEI Grant- will be receiving $15,000 for technology 
• September 6th first day of school 

Director of Operations Report- Stephan Henriquez 
• CSEE geothermal project application was accepted as stage 1 for the high school 
• The Fiscal Year 18 audit of the CSEE by our independent auditors has commenced 
• 1 Gig Fiber internet upgrade has been installed and made active 
• Requested that a letter be sent to Senator Shelly Mayer thanking her. 

BoostEd Finance Report-P. Augello 
• Base Per Pupil revenue was slightly below budget for the year. The actual revenue recorded is based upon the final 

reconciliation enrollment of 696.242 students. The budgeted enrollment for the year was 698. 
• Fixed Assets represent capital purchase through the end of the month 
• Accounts Payable/Accrued Expenses represents expenses incurred but not yet paid out at month-end. 

Motion to Adjourn- 8:45 pm 
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Board of Trustees Meeting 
September 24, 2018 

Attendance: E. LaGuerre, S. Cruz, Nadine Burns-Lyons, Carlos Medina, Dr. James Stenerson, Jim Killoran, Lisbel Rosario 
Absent: 
Present Non-Board Member: C. Lopez, J. Jacaruso, J. Spina, D. Rendina, C. Goldberg, S. Henriquez 

Call to order: 5:52 PM 

Welcome and Introductory Remarks – E. LaGuerre 
• Continuous monthly meetings being held with the building department and planning department of Yonkers as 

well as meetings with Yonkers City Council members. Overwhelming support from Yonkers City Council. 
• Start working with guidance counselor to retain the 8th grade students next year for 9th grade. Exploring the 

possibility of housing students in another location until building is ready. 

Community Open Forum-Mr. LaGuerre provided opportunity for the public to address the board. 

• Leidy Solis (PTO member) - asked if we are opening, 9th grade seats to the public or only keeping the current 8th 
grade students. Mrs. Lopez explains that the 9th grade will consist of 100 students; moving the 8th grade students to 
the 9th grade cohort and enrolling students through the lottery. 50% Yonkers 50% outside of Yonkers. 

ACTION ITEMS 

Resolution 26 2018-2019: Adoption of August 23, 2018 Board of Trustee meeting minutes 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees moves to adopt the Board of Trustee meeting minutes for the August 23, 2018 Board 
of Trustees meeting. 

Motioned by: N. Burns-Lyons 
Seconded by: J. Stenerson 
Discussion: None 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 24, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 27 2018-2019: Authorization to accept an offer for the purchase of the 76 Locust Hill Avenue property in 
Yonkers, New York 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees moves to authorize the acceptance of an offer, from one of the three offers made in 
the amount of $900,000 for the purchase of 76 Locust Hill Avenue in the City of Yonkers in the amount of Nine Hundred 
Thousand Dollars ($900,000) from The Brinn Group and authorizes the preparation of a term sheet, and a contract for the 
purchase and sale of 76 Locust Hill Avenue in the City of Yonkers. 

Motioned by: C. Medina 
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Seconded by: J. Stenerson 
Discussion: accepting the bid as is 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 24, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 28 2018-2019: Authorization to enter into a contract with Partners for Architecture for architectural, 
engineering and other services required to design the CSEE high school and development of the high school. 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees moves to authorize the execution of a contract with Partners for Architecture of 
Stamford, Connecticut to provide services necessary to: design the high school; complete required environmental reviews; 
obtain needed variances, and prepare documents required for a Guaranteed Maximum Price contract needed to close on 
bonds required to pay for high school development. 

Motioned by: S. Cruz 
Seconded by: C. Medina 
Discussion: Total of $805,000.00 for all the work to complete the project. Recommended to review contract to see what is 
included and excluded. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 24, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 29 2018-2019: Authorization to enter into an agreement with R.W. Baird & Co. to be the sole underwriter 
for bonds issued by the Yonkers Economic Development Corporation or another conduit issuer by written agreement 
of CSEE and R.W. Baird & Co., and to facilitate New Market Tax Credit financing in conjunction with such bond 
financing or loans secured by Baird for the CSEE High School. 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees move to authorize the execution of an agreement with R.W. Baird & Co. (“Baird”), 
the underwriter and placement agent for bonds issued by the Yonkers Economic Development Corporation to finance the 
development of the high school facility, engaging them as sole underwriter for bonds issued by the Yonkers Economic 
Development Corporation, or a conduit bond issuer identified by written agreement of Baird and CSEE, and to facilitate 
New Markets Tax Credit financing in conjunction with bonds issued under the agreement, or loans secured by Baird, and 
to provide services including; advisory services; the preparation of preliminary and final official statements for the issuance 
of bonds, underwriting services; and placement agent services. In consideration of these services, Baird shall be paid a fee, 
in an amount not to exceed 1.75% of the bond, New Market Tax Credit or loan proceeds received by the Charter School of 
Educational Excellence, plus expenses not to exceed Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000), which shall be payable only upon 
completion of the financing via a closing on bonds, New Market Tax Credits or loans secured by Baird 

Motioned by: S. Cruz 
Seconded by: C. Medina 
Discussion: Baird underwriter services does a lot of work for other charter schools in Texas, California, and New York; 
this firm has a great reputation; CSEE has used this company for underwriter services before. 
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Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 24, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 30 2018-2019: Authorization to select Ms. Lisbel Rosario, President of the Charter School of Educational 
Excellence Parent Teacher Organization as a member of the Board of Trustees subject to receipt of approval from 
the New York State Department of Education. 

RESOLVED: The Charter School of Educational Excellence (“CSEE”) Board of Trustees, having conducted a thorough 
criminal history record check via fingerprinting which is deemed acceptable by New York State Department of Education 
(“NYSED”), and having discovered no State or federal criminal history, or having provided information regarding such 
history to NYSED, if found, and having verified that any academic and/or professional credential or qualification presented 
by the proposed member is genuine, has voted to select Ms. Lisbel Rosario, the President of the Parent Teacher Organization 
as a member of its Board of Trustees, with a term expiring on June 30, 2019, pending approval by NYSED. This resolution 
shall only take effect upon CSEE’s receipt of the NYSED approval for Ms. Lisbel Rosario to become a member of the 
CSEE Board of Trustees. 

Motioned by: S. Cruz 
Seconded by: N. Burns-Lyons 
Discussion: The trustees congratulated Ms. Rosario and explained that she can participate as a non-voting member. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 24, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Executive Session- 6:43pm-6:56pm 

Finance Report- S. Cruz 

• 2018 Beats & Bites total-$85,000.00; (had to pay vendor, party planner, revision of video) Net gross- $63,000.00 
• All bank account & credit card statements have been reviewed 
• Designer Handbag Bingo-December 7th 
• Next Beats & Bites Spring of 2019- Ritz Carlton 

Academic Report- Dr. J. Stenerson 
• Meeting was held to discuss inventory of technology equipment; inventory is up to date 
• Evaluation completed on Assistant Principals and Principal 

Facilities Report- E. LaGuerre 
• Mr. LaGuerre needs more participation in regards to facilities and meetings that go on with the high school. 

Requested that Ms. Lisbel Rosario be part of the facilities committee and requests a staff member to be on the 
committee. Mrs. Lopez appointed Mr. Palmer to become a member of the facilities committee. 

Page 15 of 50 



   
 

         
      

 
     

        
       
                    

              
           

 
          
           
     
             

       
 

 
    

          
   
       

 
    
           
               
         

 
     

          
  

 
    
     
          
      
    
  

 
    

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• Requested that Mrs. Goldberg put a Facilities Meeting together for Monday, October 1st 8:00am 
• October 2nd Building Department Meeting 

Principals Report- Cindy Lopez 
• September 20th- Open House over 400 parents 
• Many issues with Yonkers Transportation Department 
• Mr. LaGuerre requested a list of the Mount Vernon students and possibility getting a small bus for the Mount 

Vernon students; or look into the Mount Vernon School district providing the bus 
• Teacher Evaluation Process-goal is to increase the number of walkthroughs in order to provide ongoing and more 

frequent feedback. 
• Benchmark exams completed; will begin online diagnostics this week 
• Bullying Prevention Month-many activities planned during the month of October 
• Hispanic Heritage Month- theatre celebrations 
• Mr. LaGuerre requested to start discussing 9th grade expansion plan, and to look into the rental of trailers and all 

hook ups necessary (electrical, sewage) and to make a decision on what grade level will be housed in the trailers 
for next year. 

Director of Operations Report- Stephan Henriquez 
• Provided documents and coordinated responses requested of CSEE auditors for FY 18 audit. 
• Prepared and submitted “Meal Shaming Policy” required by NYSED 
• A new telephone system was installed at CSEE 

Chief Custodian Report- David Pagan 
• Mr. LaGuerre requested a report in writing for next meeting 
• Ongoing issues with the cameras; vendor was scheduled to come but did not show up 
• Reminder to turn off sprinklers when it rains 

BoostEd Finance Report-P. Augello 
• Auditors on site; will be presenting findings during the board of trustees meeting on October 10th 
• Financially sound 

PTO Report- Lisbel Rosario 
• Used Uniform Sale- profited $1,500.00 
• PTO Website – you will find the PTO Newsletter, and Calendar of events 
• 1st PTO meeting took place 9/13; 26 parents attended 
• Hosted a K-2 Movie Night 
• 9/20 started Chocolate Fundraiser 

Motion to Adjourn- 7:41 pm 
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Board of Trustees Meeting 
October 10, 2018 

Attendance: E. LaGuerre, S. Cruz, Nadine Burns-Lyons, Carlos Medina, Dr. James Stenerson, Lisbel Rosario 
Absent: Jim Killoran 
Present Non-Board Member: C. Lopez, J. Jacaruso, J. Spina, D. Rendina, C. Goldberg, S. Henriquez 

Call to order: 5:40 PM 

Welcome and Introductory Remarks – E. LaGuerre 
• Altering the agenda for tonight’s meeting as CSEE’s Independent Auditor Luis Rivera from Vargas & Rivera will 

report. 
• Congratulations to the PTO President Ms. Lisbel Rosario for becoming certified by NYSED as an active voting 

member on the Board of Trustees for the Charter School of Educational Excellence. 

Community Open Forum-Mr. LaGuerre provided opportunity for the public to address the board. No comments were 
made from the community. 

ACTION ITEMS 

Resolution 31 2018-2019: Adoption of September 24, 2018 Board of Trustee meeting minutes 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees moves to adopt the Board of Trustee meeting minutes for the September 24, 2018 
Board of Trustees meeting. 

Motioned by: J. Stenerson 
Seconded by: C. Medina 
Discussion: None 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED OCTOBER 10, 2018 

Attest: 

By: ______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 32 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with FCR Builders, Inc. for the removal of furniture and metal 
from the 226 Warburton Avenue property. 

RESOLVED: In accordance with the deliberations of the Facilities Committee at the October 1st meeting, the Board of 
Trustees authorizes a contract with FCR Builders, Inc. for the removal of furniture and metal from structures at 226 
Warburton Avenue at a cost of approximately $20,000 to pay the cost of dumpsters and tip fees. 

Motioned by: S. Cruz 
Seconded by: C. Medina 
Discussion: Furniture and tables will be cleaned and removed; this will not be part of the total remediation cost for asbestos 
removal and will be a significant savings to the school to have these items removed. 
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Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED OCTOBER 10, 2018 

Attest: 

By: ______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 33 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with Schoolhouse Project for Owners Representative Services 
required in connection with the development of the Charter School of Educational Excellence High School and 
Campus Development Project. 

RESOLVED: In accordance with the deliberations of the Facilities Committee at the October 1st meeting, the Board of 
Trustees authorizes the selection of the Schoolhouse Project proposal in response to the Charter School of Educational 
Excellence Request for Proposals for Owner’s Representative services for the development of the Charter School of 
Educational Excellence High School and Campus Development project. The Facilities Committee selection of Schoolhouse 
Project is based on the proposal price, and the Schoolhouse Project’s experience in the development of K-12 Charter Schools 
using modular construction, including the Charter School of Educational Excellence middle school facility. 

Motioned by: S. Cruz 
Seconded by: J. Stenerson 
Discussion: Schoolhouse Project has extensive experience, and the company is familiar with the construction and various 
aspects of development. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED OCTOBER 10, 2018 

Attest: 

By: ______________________________ Date: _____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 34: 2018-2019: Authorization to enter into an agreement with Buck Financial Services, LLC for financial 
advisory services required for the issuance of bonds by the Yonkers Economic Development Corporation or other 
conduit issuer identified by written agreement with R.W. Baird & Co., and to facilitate New Market Tax Credit 
financing in connection with such bond financing or other agreed upon loan financing to develop the Charter School 
of Educational Excellence High School and Campus Development Project. 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees authorizes the execution of an agreement with Buck Financial Services, LLC for 
financial advisory services required for the issuance of bonds by the Yonkers Economic Development Corporation or other 
conduit issuer identified by written agreement with R.W. Baird & Co., and to facilitate New Market Tax Credit financing 
in conjunction with such bond financing or other agreed upon loan financing to develop the Charter School of Educational 
Excellence High School and Campus Development Project. In consideration of the services, Buck Financial Services, LLC 
shall be paid a fee in amount not to exceed $175,000. The agreement with Buck Financial Services, LLC shall provide 
further that any fee paid to Buck Financial Services, when added to the fee paid by the Charter School of Educational 
Excellence to R.W. Baird & Co. shall not exceed two percent of the total amount of tax exempt bond proceeds and New 
Market Tax Credit funding obtained through the services of Buck Financial Services, LLC and R.W. Baird & Co. In 
determining whether the two percent fee cap is reached on project sources of financing is secured on financing obtained 
through the services of R.W. Baird & Co, and Buck Financial Services, LLC, the agreement with Buck Financial Services, 

Page 18 of 50 



   
 

                     
      

    
   

    
      

 
      

 
 

 
   

        
           

 
    

                    
             
          
         

    

        
          

          

   

        
          

     

 

 

  

               
    

           
       
          
                   

          
  

         

     
       
            

LLC shall provide for calculating the two percent fee cap based on the present value, not the gross value of any New Market 
Tax Credit proceeds received at closing. 

Motioned by: S. Cruz 
Seconded by: C. Medina 
Discussion: 2% Cap is in place. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED OCTOBER 10, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Informational Items 
Executive Report- Mr. LaGuerre 

• Mr. LaGuerre commends all the work that has been done since the commencement of the academic school year. 
• Thanks Mrs. Cruz, Mrs. Lopez, Ms. Goldberg for all the press coverage. 
• Received call from the NYSED commending CSEE’s level achievement. 
• Parents continuing to call; interested to know if there are open seats available for their children 

Finance Report- S. Cruz. 

• September credit card statements and vendors transactions reviewed 
• December 7th- Holiday Handbag Bingo- need more advertising; donation of a Marc Jacobs bag worth $1,900.00; 

will be looking into selling food during the event. 

Academic Report- J. Stenerson 

• Will follow up with circulating older technology 
• Mr. LaGuerre overwhelmed with the NYS test scores; it is a testament of the dedication of teachers, parents 

and staff. Yonkers Rising will be publishing a story on the test scores. 

Facilities Report 

• After considerable review of the design of the high school, a decision was made to knock down the church building 
due to the extensive work that would need to be completed to renovate the building. This will create more parking 
and make for a bigger gym with bleacher seating for 300. 27 classrooms, and will house the 8th grade students. 

• Next Facility Committee meeting- October 15th. Introducing new plans to the Yonkers City Planning Department. 
• Need to discuss the high school student’s schedule. 
• Looking into alternative location for grades K & 1 for next year at Yonkers Christian Academy. It has its own 

parking, and has student drop off area. Requested that Ms. Rosario go to see the location with parents from her 
executive committee. 

Presentation from Luis Rivera- Vargas & Rivera, LLP 

• School is in a healthy financial position 
• Generated a surplus the past 2 years; more revenue was generated than expenses 
• Controls are in place; commends staff of all records in place 
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Principal Report-Mrs. Lopez 

• Yonkers Transportation issue-buses are arriving late. Mr. LaGuerre requested we document the times of arrival, 
departures, and conversations with the transportation department. 

• New students are 2-5 years behind grade level- possible idea of After School Program 2 days a week 2 teachers, for 
2 hours. More information to follow once Academic Committee meets. 

• 109 ELL students- 14% of student body 
• Principal, APs, and directors participated in professional development with Kim Marshall to get a better 

understanding of the Marshall Teacher Evaluation process. 

Superintendent of Facilities Report-TABLED 

Director of Operations Report- S. Henriquez 

• Working with the team to confirm the scope of work, cost, and payment schedules for architect’s contract for high 
school. 

• Confirmed that there was no lapse in unemployment coverage; school is saving 75% compared to what was paid 
to the First Nonprofit Group. 

• Continuing work on debugging new phone system 

BoostEd Finance Report-P. Augello 
• Base Per Pupil revenue is above budget at this point. Actual revenue recorded is based upon October 1st billable 

enrollment of 756 students. The budgeted enrollment for the year is 714. 
• Accounts Receivable mostly represents the balance of the September invoices. Yonkers is still outstanding as of 

today. 

PTO Report- Lisbel Rosario 
• PTO is looking in to the possibility of becoming a 501c(3) tax exempt entity. 
• PTO considering the possibility of starting a scholarship fund. 
• Launched Teacher’s Grant program where teachers can request funds from the PTO for classroom materials or trip 

expenses. 

Motion to Adjourn- 7:40 pm 
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Board of Trustees Meeting 
November 20, 2018 

Attendance: E. LaGuerre, S. Cruz, Nadine Burns-Lyons, Carlos Medina, Dr. James Stenerson, Lisbel Rosario 
Absent: Jim Killoran 
Present Non-Board Member: C. Lopez, J. Jacaruso, D. Rendina, C. Goldberg, S. Henriquez 

Call to order: 5:45 PM 

Welcome and Introductory Remarks – E. LaGuerre 
• Met with Yonkers Teacher Union and had positive conversation and they are looking forward to working with 

Charter School of Educational Excellence. 
• Mr. LaGuerre discussed the events from the November 15th storm- students and staff remained at the school, because 

buses could not move and parents could not get to the school. However students were safe, warm, students had 
food. Recommends CSEE becomes a safe haven and to start getting equipment (sleeping bags, quilts, cots, or army 
beds) into the building in case another emergency happens. Mr. LaGuerre thanks all the staff that stayed to help 
with the children. 

• Thanks Rev. Whitney for guiding the drivers and helping the students who were stranded during the November 15th 
storm. 

Community Open Forum-Mr. LaGuerre provided opportunity for the public to address the board. No comments were 
made from the community. 

ACTION ITEMS 
Resolution 37 2018-2019: Adoption of October 10, 2018 Board of Trustee meeting minutes 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees moves to adopt the Board of Trustee meeting minutes for the October 10, 2018 Board 
of Trustees meeting. 

Motioned by: S. Cruz 
Seconded by: J. Stenerson 
Discussion: None 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED NOVEMBER 20, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 38 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with the Louis Simon Group for Asbestos Remediation services 
in respect to structures located at the 226 Warburton Avenue property. 

RESOLVED: In accordance with the deliberations of the Facilities Committee at the November 5th and 19th meetings, the 
Board of Trustees authorizes a contract with the Louis Simon Group for asbestos remediation services in respect to four 
structures at 226 Warburton Avenue, pursuant to the Asbestos Remediation RFP, at a cost of $785,400. This contract cost 
does not include: permit fees; utility disconnection costs; or the cost of monitoring services to be obtained under a separate 
contract. 
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Motioned by: S. Cruz 
Seconded by: J. Stenerson 
Discussion: School received three proposals. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED NOVEMBER 20, 2018 

Attest: 

By: ___________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 39 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with Hollister Construction Services for Pre-Construction 
Services required for the development of the Charter School of Educational Excellence high school at the 226 
Warburton Avenue property. 

RESOLVED: In accordance with the deliberations of the Facilities Committee at the November 5th and 19th meetings, the 
Board of Trustees authorizes a contract with Hollister Construction Services for pre-construction services in respect to the 
development of the Charter School of Educational Excellence high school at 226 Warburton Avenue, for a period of 
approximately 12 weeks, at a cost of $35,180. The services provided include: Preliminary Conceptual Budget Development; 
Attendance to Weekly Meetings; Documentation of Weekly Meeting (Meeting Minutes); Master and Project Schedule 
Development and Maintenance; Assistance in Project Programming; Schematic Design Drawing Budget; Design 
Development Budget; Construction Drawings Budget; Preliminary and Final Value Engineering Suggestions; Early 
Subcontractor Integration; Means and Methods Evaluation; and Long Lead Item Verification. 

Motioned by: S. Cruz 
Seconded by: C. Medina 
Discussion: Headquarters is located in NJ; not doing a design build contract with them right now. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED NOVEMBER 20, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Informational Items 
Finance Report- S. Cruz. 

• Vendor and credit card statements have been reviewed 
• Designer Handbag BINGO- 12/7 
• End of year appeal card going out to supporters 
• Giving Tuesday 11 /27 /18- donation page on website, next year would like to have a bigger campaign for Giving 

Tuesday. 
• Very thankful for the handbag donation from Chancellor Betty Rosa. 

Academic Report- J. Stenerson 

• Exploring ESports (online gaming) Program-, this would give students the opportunity to earn scholarships. 
• School in San Juan, Puerto Rico completely devastated from Hurricane Maria Mr. LaGuerre met with Principal & 

Director of Technology willing to accept CSEE’s old technology. 
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Facilities Report-Mr. LaGuerre 

• High School Facilities Committee meets every Monday 
• Water pressure issue has been resolved 
• Loose items in the building need to be removed; issue pending is the removal of the wood. 
• Building plans submitted and were turned down 
• Zoning variance plans will be completed 
• Pending items- landmark status because building is over 70 years old. 
• Thanks Mr. Paul Augello for all his work with this project. 

Principal Report-Mrs. Lopez 

• Staff Professional Development: Mental health & DASA (Dignity for All Students Act) 
• New students in grades 7-8: High Risk students who need additional help via After School Program. (23 students) 

2x per week from 4:00-5:30. Recommended to increase to 3x per week. Also look into possible Saturday Academy 
• Trustees requested a report on how students are doing in after school program for next board meeting; Mrs. Lopez 

said data will be reviewed before parent conferences to determine what is the next step. 
• Suggested to create a linkage program with Yonkers Public School; reach out to Dr. Rabbadi to focus on students 

that are several years behind. 
• CSEE’s annual Thanksgiving Feast was a success! 
• Mrs. Lopez asked for a policy to be put in place to deal with emergency school closings, specifically because CSEE 

is a Regional school. 
• Need to address with Yonkers Board of Trustees to address transportation issues; why are CSEE students the last 

ones to be picked up for early closings? 
• 200 Turkeys distributed in CSEE parking lot to families. 

Superintendent of Facilities Report-Mrs. Lopez advised the Board that Mr. Pagan was in a terrible car accident and has 
not been cleared to return to work yet. 

Director of Operations Report- S. Henriquez 

• R.W. Baird bond underwriting and placement service executed. 
• Submitted request for bridge loan to Customers Bank 
• Reseached NYS law and codes regarding facility requirements for Kindergarten and 1st grade children. 
• Need to explore and have a backup plan in case Yonkers Christian Academy becomes unavailable for CSEE use. 

BoostEd Finance Report-P. Augello 
• Base Per Pupil revenue is above budget at this point. The actual revenue recorded is based upon the October 1st 

billable enrollment of 756 students. The budgeted enrollment for the year is 714. 
• Prepaid Expenses/Benefits/Insurance represents items paid for in advance. They are expensed out in the profit and 

loss statement when incurred. 

PTO Report- Lisbel Rosario 
• November 8th was the monthly meeting- goal is to have 50 parents at each meeting. Needs different ways to entice 

parents to get involved 
• Holiday Boutique Sale- 12/18 & 12/19 
• PTO sponsoring a table at Designer Handbag Bingo 
• Requested to send Mrs. Lopez an email to follow up with parent concerns 
• January PTO meeting will have a guest speaker 
• Recommended to bring in a nutritionist to speak to parents 

Motion to Adjourn- 7:40 pm 
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Board of Trustees Meeting 
December 11, 2018 

Attendance: E. LaGuerre, S. Cruz, Nadine Burns-Lyons, Carlos Medina, Dr. James Stenerson, Jim Killoran, Lisbel Rosario 
Absent: 
Present Non-Board Member: C. Lopez, J. Jacaruso, D. Rendina, C. Goldberg, S. Henriquez 

Call to order: 5:33 PM 

Finance Report- S. Cruz. 

• All credit card statements expenses have been reviewed; vendor statements have been reviewed 
• Successful Designer Handbag BINGO- raised after expense $6,000; planning to hold event again next year. 

Welcome and Introductory Remarks – E. LaGuerre 
• Mr. LaGuerre thanks Paul Augello for all the work he has done in regards to the high school, Rev. Whitney who 

will speak at the December 18th Zoning Board Meeting, Carmen for bringing in local stakeholders to speak. 
• Commissioner Wilson came to visit CSEE; positive meeting was held at the Building Department. 
• Great partners in the City of Yonkers looking forward a smooth process 

Community Open Forum-Mr. LaGuerre provided opportunity for the public to address the board. No comments were 
made from the community. 

ACTION ITEMS 
Resolution 40 2018-2019: Adoption of November 20, 2018 Board of Trustee meeting minutes 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees moves to adopt the Board of Trustee meeting minutes for the November 20, 2018 
Board of Trustees meeting. 

Motioned by: J. Stenerson 
Seconded by: L. Rosario 
Discussion: None 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED DECEMBER 11, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 41 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with Chandler LLC to prepare a Commercial New Construction 
Application to the New York State Energy Research Development Authority (‘NYSERDA”). 

Resolved: The Board of Trustees authorizes the execution of a contract with Chandler LLC to submit a Level 1 application 
to NYSERDA for Commercial New Construction support for a fee not to exceed $3,000. The submission of the application 
shall involve energy modeling by Vidaris, Inc. to be performed at no cost to the Charter School of Educational Excellence. 
Any decision to proceed with Level 2 or 3 applications to NYSERDA shall be made in the sole discretion of the Charter 
School of Educational Excellence. 
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Motioned by: C. Medina 
Seconded by: J. Stenerson 
Discussion: Must work closely with architect to get application to NYSERDA 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED DECEMBER 11, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 42 2018-2019: Authorization to retain Goldstein Hall PLLC 80 Broad Street New York, New York 10004 
as Charter School of Educational Excellence bond counsel, and to provide legal services in respect to matters 
including the formation of a Special Purpose Entity, negotiation of New Market Tax Credits, and construction 
matters for the development of the Charter School of Educational Excellence High School 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees authorizes a retailer agreement subject to closing with Goldstein Hall PLLC 80 Broad 
Street New York, NewYork 10004 to serve as bond counsel to the Charter School of Educational Excellence, and to provide 
legal services in respect to other matters including the formation of a Special Purpose Entity, negotiation of any NewMarket 
Tax Credit allocations obtained, and construction contract matters related to the development of the Charter School of 
Educational Excellence High School. The retainer agreement is not to exceed $125,000.00 

Motioned by: C. Medina 
Seconded by: L. Rosario 
Discussion: Mr. LaGuerre requests that they come to see the school and location of high school as well as meet with the 
principal. It is requested that he Asbestos removal contact, Demolition contract and contract with Schoolhouse Project be 
sent to Goldstein & Hall. 
Votes for and against: Unanimous 

PASSED AND ADOPTED DECEMBER 11, 2018 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Informational Items 
Academic Report- J. Stenerson 

• Recycling older technology-still pending 
• Weekly meetings held with the Principal 
• Looking to add a Behavioral Management (Dean) position for the upcoming school year. Mr. LaGuerre requested 

a clear-cut job description for this position; this person should also be meeting with parents. 

Facilities Report-Mr. LaGuerre 

• Visit to St. Bartholomew’s School at 278 Saw Mill River Road Yonkers, took place and looking to engage with 
the archdiocese to leasing the space for up to 2 years while the high school is being built. Henriquez to start 
working on lease agreement and send to Goldstein with commencement date of July 1, 2019; should have access 
to building to paint, install wifi, cameras, bringing in furniture and clean. 
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Principal Report-Mrs. Lopez 

• Requested the school develop a policy for confrontational parents. Need legal direction for parents that threaten, 
confront, and use profanity. Engage this discussion with legal counsel. Mr. LaGuerre requested PTO looks into 
this and research how other schools deal with belligerent parents and how to respond to them. This should be a 
legal zero tolerance policy and should include parents and older siblings. This should be ready for next board 
meeting to pass a resolution to put this policy in place. 

• Transportation issues still-buses running 10-20 minutes late every day. Contacted NYSED for next steps 
• DASA training for all staff. 
• Grades 3-8 advised to incorporate additional typing practice in class, as students need to become more fluid in this 

area. 

Director of Operations Report- S. Henriquez 

• Customers Bank agreed to a bridge loan as a line of credit instead of a term loan. Mr. LaGuerre directed Bond 
team to have weekly conferences 

• Provided comments on issues to be addressed in finalizing asbestos remediation contract 
• Arranged for sprinkler and annual fire inspections. 
• Nadine Burns-Lyons to bring letter to Chase Bank for PTO Signatory. 

BoostEd Finance Report-P. Augello 
• Base Per Pupil revenue is above budget at this point. The actual revenue recorded is based upon the December 1st 

billable enrollment of 754 students. The budgeted enrollment for the year is 714. 
• Professional Services, in total were over budget due to expenses incurred on the SSAE grant that the school 

received. 

PTO Report- Lisbel Rosario 
• This months meeting to be held on 12/13 
• Holiday Boutique Sale- 12/19, 12/20 during all lunch periods 
• January- Family fitness night 
• January PTO Meeting Presenter- how to save money for college? 

Motion to Adjourn- 7:04 pm 
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Board of Trustees Meeting 
January 10, 2019 

Attendance: E. LaGuerre, S. Cruz, Carlos Medina, Dr. James Stenerson, Jim Killoran, Lisbel Rosario 
Absent: Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Present Non-Board Member: C. Lopez, J. Jacaruso, D. Rendina, C. Goldberg, S. Henriquez 

Call to order: 5:50 PM 

Welcome and Introductory Remarks – E. LaGuerre 
• CSEE High School project moving aggressively forward. Shared project with community and local homeowners; 

project was well received and we have good support from the community. 
• Zoning Chairman came to the High School location on January 10, 2019 to confirm the site of building and location 

of field. 
• Must get IDA application out. 

Athletics Report-Mr. DeSimone, Director of Athletics 

• CSEE received a $3,000 grant from the NFL for promoting healthy eating and physical activity. 
• Positive Coaching Alliance Presentation 

o CSEE’s goal is to instill character in our students, to have them understand the importance of teamwork, 
respect and accountability through sports. 

o The partnership with Positive Coaching Alliance will help take CSEE’s athletes to the next level. Parents 
and coaches will get online access to their program. 

o This partnership will allow speakers to come in and talk to coaches, parents, and athletes. 

Community Open Forum-Mr. LaGuerre provided opportunity for the public to address the board. 

• Ms. Brown commented on how happy she is with the school and how hard the teachers work 
• Mr. LaGuerre commented on how people in the community are asking how they can volunteer at the school. 

ACTION ITEMS 

Resolution 43 2018-2019: Adoption of December 11, 2018 Board of Trustee meeting minutes 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees moves to adopt the Board of Trustee meeting minutes for the December 11, 2018 
Board of Trustees meeting. 

Motioned by: J. Killoran 
Seconded by: S. Cruz 
Discussion: Requested that when referring to “St. Bart’s” for the entire name and address be written out St. Bartholomew 
at 278 Saw Mill River Road Yonkers. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED JANUARY 10, 2019 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 
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Resolution 44 2018-2019 Authorization to contract with Janice Meyers Educational Consulting, LLC for Universal 
Service Fund E-rate program services. 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees moves to authorize a contract in the amount of $7,200.00 between the Charter 
School of Educational Excellence and Janice Meyers Educational Consulting LLC for Universal Service Fund E-rate 
program services for the 2018-2019 fiscal year. 

Motioned by: S. Cruz 
Seconded by: J. Killoran 
Discussion: CSEE has used Janice Meyers Educational Consulting LLC in the past; we have a good partnership with 
company and CSEE would use Janice Meyers Educational Consulting LLC for the high school expansion. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED JANUARY 10, 2019 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 45 2018-2019 Declaration of official intent and authorization to reimburse the Charter School of 
Educational Excellence (“CSEE”) with a portion of the proceeds of a bond financing for prior project expenditures 
undertaken or to be undertaken by CSEE; identifying said capital expenditures and providing for other matters in 
connection therewith 

WHEREAS, the Charter School of Educational Excellence is a duly existing charter school under the laws of New York 
State with 501(c)(3) status; and 

WHEREAS, the CSEE Board of Trustees as the governing body of CSEE has determined that it is in the best interest of 
CSEE to make certain capital expenditures consisting of (a) the acquisition and improvement of Block 2106, Lots 29, 30, 
34 and 36 in the City of Yonkers, known by the street address of 226 Warburton Avenue for purposes of a building a high 
school (the “School Building”); (b) capital expenditures and other capital improvements made to the School Building in 
general; (c) the funding of certain reserve funds under the Bond documents; and (d) the payment of certain costs of 
issuance related to the Bonds, including but not limited to underwriter's discounts or fees, counsel fees, accountant 
fees, printing costs and similar expenses (collectively referred to as the "Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the CSEE Board of Trustees currently intends and reasonably expects in the future to participate in a tax-
exempt bond financing through a conduit issuer such as the City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency including an 
aggregate principal amount which is currently estimated not to exceed $52,000,000 (the “Bonds”); and 

WHEREAS, the School intends to use a portion of the proceeds from the Bonds to reimburse the School for certain 
expenditures related to the Project that the School has paid prior to the date of the issuance of the Bonds from the 
School's funds; and 

WHEREAS, this Resolution is intended to set forth the intentions of the Board to facilitate the financing of the Project 
with the proceeds of the Bonds, and it is further intended to constitute the "Official Intent" requirement prescribed in 
the Treasury Regulations for expenditures made after the July 1, 1993, effective date of such regulations. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. Official Intent Requirement. In accordance with the aforesaid Treasury Regulations, the School 
hereby sets forth its intention that a portion of the proceeds from the Bonds will be used to reimburse the 
School for expenditures related to the Project which have been paid by the School prior to the date of the 

Page 28 of 50 



   
 

                
                 

                   
                

               
                    

               
                   

                
    

 
  
                        

                 
               
                   

                      
                    
 

 
  
                

                     
              

                    
                    

                 
                  

                 
     

         
  
                           

                  
 

  
                   
  

   
   
           

         
 

      
 

 
 

   
        
           
 

    

issuance of the Bonds. All expenditures to be reimbursed will be permitted expenditures under the Treasury 
Regulations, including but not limited to capital expenditures or costs of issuance for the Bonds. The School 
intends to be reimbursed for the expenditures it makes through the incurrence of debt by the School to be 
evidenced by the Bonds. The expenditures made by the School which are to be fully or partially reimbursed 
in accordance with the intent of this Resolution relate to the expenditures deemed reasonably necessary for 
the Project prior to the issuance of the Bonds. The reasonably expected source of funds that will be used to 
pay the reimbursable expenditures is the School's general fund and the reasonably expected source of funds 
to be used to pay debt service on the Bonds is the operating revenues from the School. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, this Resolution does not bind the School to make any expenditure, incur any indebtedness, or 
proceed with the Project. 

2. Reimbursement Allocation. The School shall allocate the proceeds from the Bonds to reimburse a prior 
expenditure by making the allocation on its books and recordsmaintained with respect to the Bonds. Such 
allocation shall specifically identify the actual prior expenditures of the School to be reimbursed. Such 
allocation shall occur not earlier than the date on which the expenditure is paid and not later than eighteen 
(18) months after the later of: (a) the date onwhich tl1e original expenditure was paid; or (b) the date on which 
the Project was placed in service, but in no event more than three (3) years after the original expenditure was 
paid. 

3. Limitation on Reimbursement. The proceeds from the Bonds used to reimburse the School for prior 
expenditures shall not be used for any of the following purposes: (a) within one (1) year of the date of the 
reimbursement allocation to "refund" another issue of tax-exempt obligations within the meaning of Section 
148of the Internal Revenue Code; (b) within one (1) year of the date of the reimbursement allocation to create 
or increase the balance in a "sinking fund"; (c) within one (1) year of the date of reimbursement allocation to 
create or increase the balance in a "reserve or replacement fund" within the meaning of the Treasury 
Regulations with respect to any tax-exempt obligation; and (d) to reimburse any person or entity of the School 
for any expenditure or any payment with respect to financing an expenditure that was originally paid with 
proceeds of any tax-exempt obligation. 

4. Confirmation of Prior Acts. All prior acts and doings of the officials, agents and employees of the Charter 
School of Educational Excellence which are in conformity with the purpose and intent of this Resolution, and in 
furtherance of the Project, shall be and the same hereby are in all respects ratified, approved and confirmed. 

5. Effective Date of Resolution. Resolution 45 2018- 2019 shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 

Motioned by: J. Killoran 
Seconded by: S. Cruz 
Discussions: Several lawyers worked on this resolution; school will be reimbursed on money that is spent. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED JANUARY 10, 2019 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 46 2018-2019 Authorization to contract with the Positive Coaching Alliance. 
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RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees moves to authorize the payment of $2,500 required for CSEE to contract with the 
Positive Coaching Alliance and implement the Positive Coaching Alliance program at CSEE. 

Motioned by: J. Killoran 
Seconded by: C. Medina 
Discussion: None 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED JANUARY 10, 2019 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Informational Items 

Board Retreat & Changes to Board of Trustee Meeting Dates 

• Retreat scheduled for May 18, 2019 at CSEE from 9:00am-5:00pm- to include an extensive financial report, look 
to have Baird come in and construction report on agenda. 

Changes to meeting dates 

• February 12, 2019 
• March 14, 2019 
• April 9, 2019 
• June 13, 2019-date stays the same change in time to 4:30pm 

Finance Report- S. Cruz 

• All credit card statements expenses have been reviewed; vendor statements have been reviewed 
• End of year Appeal Cards-raised $10,300 in donations 
• Giving Tuesday- raised $1,762 in donations 
• Committee to meet in beginning of February to start planning for Beats & Bytes 

Academic Report- J. Stenerson 

• Recycling old technology- to school in need in Puerto Rico 
• High School brochure sample-add a couple of more pictures and send for printing 400 copies 
• Phone System- making progress with PA system working but still needs fine-tuning, keeping a record of all steps. 
• Camera- not all cameras working, no maintenance contract; cameras have not been finalized with installation. 

Henriquez to follow up with an email by Monday. Killoran to email name of new vendor for security cameras. 

Principal Report-Mrs. Lopez 

• Still having many issues related to Yonkers bus arriving late to pick up students 
• K-9 informational session held on 1/9/19 at CSEE for perspective parents 
• Still visiting High School programs to discuss curriculum and regents courses 
• Follow up meetings with parents of students at risk of not being promoted have been scheduled 
• Mr. LaGuerre requested staff to be trained “Coping with LGBTQ Community” 

Director of Operations Report- S. Henriquez 
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• CSEE passed annual NYSED fire inspection 
• 5 year sprinkler inspection- repairs completed 
• HVAC-semiannual maintenance 
• Intercom system balanced and enabled use of speakers in the middle school gym. 
• Look into turning off loudspeaker when calling names on announcements. 

BoostEd Finance Report-P. Augello 
• Base Per Pupil revenue is above budget at this point. The actual revenue recorded is based upon the December 1st 

billable enrollment of 754 students. The budgeted enrollment for the year is 714. 
• Will submit draft on budget amendment for next meeting. 

PTO Report- Lisbel Rosario 
• PTO meeting held on 1/9/19- 17 participants in the presentation “How to Save for College” 
• 1/18/19-Family Fitness Night- Zumba and Nutrition 
• 2/8/19- Cultural Program- Dance and Arts and Crafts 
• 3/15/19- Paint Night @ CSEE 

Motion to Adjourn- 7:39 pm 
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Board of Trustees Meeting 
February 26, 2019 

Attendance: E. LaGuerre, S. Cruz, Nadine Burns-Lyons, Carlos Medina, Dr. James Stenerson, Jim Killoran, Lisbel Rosario 
Absent: None 
Present Non-Board Member: C. Lopez, J. Jacaruso, D. Rendina, C. Goldberg, S. Henriquez 

Call to order: 6:15 PM 

Welcome and Introductory Remarks – E. LaGuerre 
• Mr. LaGuerre is proud to announce that Mr. Lopez the 7th and 8th grade Social Studies teacher and CSEE’s Soccer 

coach as well as a United States Veteran was awarded the National teacher award and recognized as one of the top 
teachers in the United States. Mr. LaGuerre requested the school does something special for him. 

Community Open Forum-Mr. LaGuerre provided opportunity for the public to address the board. No comments were 
made from the community. 

ACTION ITEMS 
Resolution 47 2018-2019: Adoption of January 10, 2018 Board of Trustee meeting minutes 

RESOLVED, the Board of Trustees moves to adopt the Board of Trustee meeting minutes for the January 10, 2019 Board 
of Trustees meeting. 

Motioned by: J. Killoran 
Seconded by: C. Medina 
Discussion: None 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED FEBRUARY 26, 2019 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

RESOLUTION 48 2018-2019 Authorization to Contract with Capital Industries, Inc 

RESOLVED, the CSEE Board of Trustees authorizes a contract with State Contracting Corp. of NY dba Capital Industries, 
Corp. the low bidder pursuant to the Request for Proposals to demolish buildings and remove debris located at 220-236 
Warburton Avenue, Yonkers, New York in the amount of $456,000. 

Motioned by: S. Cruz 
Seconded by: C. Medina 
Discussion: Included in the contract will be to level, fence, and demolish 4 buildings. There were four bids submitted; this 
was lowest bid, it is a local company who is currently doing work in Yonkers. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED FEBRUARY 26, 2019 
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Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

RESOLUTION 49 2018-2019: Authorization to adopt a Charter School of Educational Excellence Admissions and 
Enrollment Policy for Grades K-12 Regional School Program 

RESOLVED, the CSEE Board of Trustees authorizes the adoption of the CSEE Admissions and Enrollment Policy for 
Grades K-12 Regional School Program consistent with ¶2854 of the New York State Education Law. Student applications 
shall be selected on the basis of a CSEE Lottery/random drawing as specified in CSEE’s Charter, and will provide for the 
following priorities: (1) siblings of admitted students who have submitted their application on time; (2) 50% of open seats 
to Yonkers School District Students; and (3) 50% of open seats to students residing outside of the Yonkers School District. 

Motioned by: J. Killoran 
Seconded by: C. Medina 
Discussion: This was submitted as a material revision to NYSED. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED FEBRUARY 26, 2019 

Attest: 
By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

RESOLUTION 50 2018-2019: Authorization to amend the contract with Partners for Architecture to authorize a 
subconsultant agreement with Lee Weintraub Landscape Architects. 

RESOLVED, the Board of Trustees authorizes an amendment to the CSEE contract with Partners for Architecture 
increasing the contract price from $805,000 to $821,700 so as to provide for Partners for Architecture to enter into a 
subconsultant agreement with Lee Weintraub Landscape Architects in the amount of $16,700 for landscape design and 
lighting services required for the CSEE submission to the Planning Board of the City of Yonkers. 

Motioned by: J. Killoran 
Seconded by: C. Medina 
Discussion: This was a request made by Yonkers Planning Board that CSEE produces a plan for the design of exterior 
lighting of the high school building. Trustees discussed that the lighting be energy efficient. This is to ensure that there will 
be no light pollution during the off hours. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED FEBRUARY 26, 2019 

Attest: 
By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

RESOLUTION 51 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with LARCAM for the scheduled inspection and 
maintenance of the CSEE video camera system. 
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RESOLVED, the CSEE Board of Trustees authorizes the award of a contract to Larcam, the company that installed and 
cabled the CSEE digital video recorder and high definition camera system for inspection and maintenance of CSEE camera 
systems at CSEE facilities for an annual fee of $6,000. 

Motioned by: S. Cruz 
Seconded by: J. Stenerson 
Discussion: Contract states that LARCAM is required to keep camera systems operating at all locations. Mr. Henriquez to 
send Dr. Stenerson the contract. Currently, there are 10 cameras out and a lag time. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED FEBRUARY 26, 2019 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

RESOLUTION 52 2018-2019: APPROVAL AND AUTHORIZATION TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER VARIOUS 
DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH A CERTAIN BRIDGE LOAN FROMCUSTOMERS BANK AND ISSUANCE 
OF CERTAIN EDUCATION REVENUE BONDS BY THE YONKERS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION 

WHEREAS, at the request of the Charter School of Education Excellence, a New York charter school authorized 
by the Education Department of the State of New York pursuant to Article 56 of the Education Law of the State of New 
York (the “Institution”), the Yonkers Economic Development Corporation (the “Issuer”), a not-for-profit local 
development corporation organized and existing under Section 1411 of the New York State Not-For-Profit Corporation Law 
is to issue its Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project) Series 2019, in the principal 
amount of not to exceed $52,000,000.00 (the “Bonds”) pursuant to the provisions of a trust indenture (the “Indenture”) by 
and between the Issuer and a Trustee for the holders of the Bonds issued under the Indenture in connection with the 
undertaking by the Issuer of a project (the “Project”), which Project consists of the (A) financing all or a portion of the 
costs of the acquisition and construction of the 2019 Project (defined below); (B) paying capitalized interested on the portion 
of the Series 2019 Bonds allocable to the 2019 Project; (C) funding a reserve fund and such other and necessary funds for 
the Bonds as described in and required by the Indenture; and (D) financing various expenditures incidental to the financing, 
including costs of issuance; and 

WHEREAS, the Institution acquired Block 2106, Lots 29, 30, 34, and 36 in the City of Yonkers, known by the 
street address of 226 Warburton Avenue (the “Property”) with the Institution’s general funds in September 2017 for 
$2,450,000.00; and 

WHEREAS, the Institution will partially finance the construction of the 2019 Project with the proceeds of the lesser 
of either (1) a $1,250,000.00 Promissory Note or (2) Promissory Note for fifty (50%) of the appraised value of the Property, 
issued to Customers Bank (the “Bridge Loan”), which shall be reimbursed to the Institution with a portion of the proceeds 
of the Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Institution will also use a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds to finance all or a portion of the 
costs of a new, approximately 57,000 square-foot high school building, approximately 16,876 square-feet of parking space, 
and an outdoor sports field (the “2019 Project”) consisting of approximately four-stories with a parking lot, providing 
sixteen class rooms, art studio, automotive lab, culinary arts teaching classroom, computer lab, language lab, music 
classroom, two science classrooms, three project rooms, gymnasium, cafeteria and the outdoor sports field for 400 students 
in 9th to 12th grade, all to be located at the Property and owned by the Institution; and 
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WHEREAS, pursuant to the Indenture, the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds (the “Bond Proceeds”) will be 
deposited into various trust funds held by the Trustee under the Indenture and will be disbursed by the Trustee from time to 
time to pay the costs of the 2019 Project, but only upon satisfaction of the requirements for making such disbursements set 
forth in the Indenture; and 

WHEREAS, the Institution will execute and deliver to a custodian (the “Custodian”) and the Trustee a custody 
agreement (the “Custody Agreement”), which Custody Agreement will provide the agreement of the Institution to direct 
School Districts (as defined in the Indenture) to pay Education Aid (as defined in the Indenture) to the Custodian for the 
benefit of the Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Pledge and Assignment, loan payments made by the Institution under the Loan 
Agreement (as defined in the Indenture) are to be paid directly to the Trustee; and 

WHEREAS, as further security for the Bonds and the Institution’s obligations under the Financing Documents (as 
defined in the Indenture), the Institution and the Issue will execute and deliver to the Trustee (A) a mortgage (the 
“Mortgage”), which mortgage will, among other things, grant to the Trustee a first mortgage lien on, and security interest 
in, the 2019 Project and (B) an assignment of leases and rents for the 2019 Project (the “Assignment of Rents”) which 
assigns to the Trustee all leases affecting the 2019 Project and the rents payable thereunder; and 

WHEREAS, the Bonds will be offered for sale pursuant to an official statement (the “Official Statement”) of the 
Issuer and will be sold to the underwriter(s) named therein (collectively, the “Underwriter”) pursuant to the terms and 
provisions of a bond purchase agreement (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”) between the Institution and the Underwriter; 
and 

WHEREAS, to demonstrate compliance with the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”) relation to 
the issuance of tax-exempt obligations, (A) the Issuer will (1) execute a completed Internal Revenue Service Form 8038 
(Information Return for Private Activity Bonds) relating to the Bonds (the “Information Return”) pursuant to Section 
149(e) of the Code, and (2) file the Information Return with the Internal Revenue Service, (B) the Institution will execute a 
tax compliance agreement dated the date of delivery of the Bonds (the “Tax Compliance Agreement”) relating to the 
requirements in Section 145, 146, 147, 148 and 149 of the Code relating to the Bonds, and (C) the Placement Agent will 
execute a letter (the “Issue Price Letter”) confirming the issue price of the Bonds for purposes of Section 148 of the Code; 
and 

WHEREAS, to assure compliance with the continuing disclosure requirements impose by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission, the Institution will execute and deliver to the Trustee a continuing disclosure undertaking (the 
“Continuing Disclosure Agreement”); 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INSTITUTION AS 
FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. APPROVAL OF 2019 PROJECT. Construction and financing of the 2019 Project is hereby 
approved. 

SECTION 2. APPROVAL OF INSTITUTION DOCUMENTS. The execution and delivery by the Institution of 
the Official Statement, Indenture, the Loan Agreement, the Custody Agreement, the Mortgage, the Assignment of Rents, 
the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Continuing Disclosure Agreement and the Tax Compliance Agreement (as each such 
document is defined in the Indenture) and the Placement Memorandum and any other document now or hereafter executed 
by the Institution (collectively, the “Institution Documents”) in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, (a copy of 
which shall be filed with the records of the Institution as soon as available after the execution and delivery thereof) and all 
documents required to be executed in connection with the Bridge Loan (the “Bridge Loan Documents”), (a copy of which 
shall be filed with the records of the Institution as soon as available after the execution and delivery thereof), are hereby 
approved. 

SECTION 3. APPROVAL OF ISSUER DOCUMENTS. The execution and delivery by the Issuer of the Bonds, the 
Indenture, the Custody Agreement, the Mortgage, the Assignment of Rents, the Official Statement, the Bond Purchase 
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______________________________ 

Agreement, the Arbitrage Certification, the Information Return for Private Activity Bond Issues (Internal Revenue Service 
Form 8038), the Placement Memorandum (as each such document is defined in the Indenture) and any other document now 
or hereafter executed by the Issuer (collectively, the “Issuer Documents”) in connection with the issuance of the Bonds 
and the undertaking by the Issuer of the 2019 Project (a copy of each shall be filed with the records of the Institution), are 
hereby approved. 

SECTION 4. AUTHORIZED OFFICER. The President (the “Authorized Officer”) of the Institution is hereby 
designated and appointed to act as the Authorized Officer of the Institution in all matters relating to the Institution 
Documents and Bridge Loan Documents.  

SECTION 5. EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF DOCUMENTS. The President is hereby authorized, on behalf of 
the Institution, to execute, acknowledge (if appropriate) and deliver the Institution Documents, Bridge Loan Documents, 
and such other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in order to effectuate the execution and delivery of the 
Institution Documents and Bridge Loan Documents, the issuance and sale of the Bonds and the undertaking and completion 
of the 2019 Project, all in substantially the forms thereof presented to this meeting, with such changes, variations, omission 
and insertions as the officer of the Institution signing same shall approve, the execution thereof by such officer to constitute 
conclusive evidence of such approval. 

CERTIFICATION 

The undersigned, being the duly elected and qualifying Secretary of CHARTER SCHOOL OF EDUCATIONAL 
EXCELLENCE (the “Institution”), DOES HEREBY CERTIFY that that following constitutes a true and correct copy of a 
resolution adopted by the board of trustees of the Institution on ____________, 2019, authorizing the execution, delivery 
and performance of the Institution Documents, as it appears in the records of the Institution in my possession as of the date 
hereof. 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force and effect and has not been 
amended, repealed or rescinded. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto set my hand this ____ day of _________________, 2019. 

Secretary 
Motioned by: S. Cruz 
Seconded by: J. Killoran 
Discussion: It was explained that several lawyers put this resolution together 
Votes for and against: Ms. Lisbel Rosario abstained from voting; unanimous vote from all other Board of Trustee members 

PASSED AND ADOPTED FEBRUARY 26, 2019 

Attest: 
By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Executive Session-
Commenced 6:42pm 
Concluded- 7:25pm 

RESOLUTION 53 2018 2019: Authorization to create a consultant legal position for the Charter School of 
Educational Excellence due to the increase legal contracts of work that is imminent right now for the oncoming high 
school beginning March 1, 2019. 

Page 36 of 50 



   
 

         
            

  
 
 

   
   

                     
      

 
      

 
 

   
       
           
 

 
    

            
        

    

           
     
                  
        
    

   

                
         
                

             
      
                    

           

   

    
            
    
   

    

             
 

   

RESOLVED: the CSEE Board of Trustees authorizes the creation of a consultant legal position for the Charter School of 
Educational Excellence due to the increase legal contracts of work that is imminent right now for the oncoming high school 
beginning March 1, 2019. 

Motioned by: J. Killoran 
Seconded by: L. Rosario 
Discussion: This is a newly created position and the council will report to the Board of Trustees; and School Principal. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED FEBRUARY 26, 2019 

Attest: 
By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Informational Items 
Executive Committee Report-Mr. LaGuerre 

• An organizational chart was developed and will reflect the new structure of CSEE, which will incorporate a 
Superintendent and three Principals. This was submitted to New York State Board of Regents. 

Finance Report- S. Cruz 

• All credit card statements expenses have been reviewed; vendor statements have been reviewed 
• Beats & Bites- June 11, 2019 at Kanopi 
• Looking into additional fundraising for 120 laptops, 4 charging stations, and 5 projectors for the high school 
• Designer Handbag Bingo for 2019- possibly to have it on a Saturday 
• Mr. Killoran recommended a ribbon cutting groundbreaking ceremony to raise money for the high school 

Academic Report- J. Stenerson 

• Meeting with the Principal on a weekly basis for updates on the High School curriculum 
• Recommended that a presentation be made to the Board of Trustees regarding the High School curriculum 
• Ongoing discussions regarding resources needed at the high school especially academic technology and to meet 

with current Audio/Video Company to expand resources over to the leased site. 
• Replacement of Lenovo laptop that crashed. 
• CSEE provided 25 computers to the School of Peru High School in San Juan, Puerto Rico that was devastated by 

Hurricane Maria. Pictures will be added to school’s website. 

Facilities Report-Mr. LaGuerre 

• High School Facility Committee meets every Monday; things are moving smoothly ahead with the high school. 
• Variance request was submitted to Zoning Board and we were approved 
• Next steps- the Yonkers planning committee and meeting with IDA with approval for the bonds 
• Thanks Mrs. Goldberg for all the help with moving things along. 

Principal Report-Mrs. Lopez 

• Ongoing Recruitment Meetings for the K-9; 19-20 school year; making sure to get the word out that CSEE 
is a Free Public Regional K-9 school; over 400 applications 

• 3rd visit to St. Bart’s to inspect school building and discuss upcoming school year and facility needs 
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• Ongoing meetings with CSEE team regarding the high school project; facilities, curriculum, and 
equipment needed 

• Ongoing teacher evaluations; academic directors helping with evaluations and professional development 

Superintendent of Facilities Report-D. Pagan 

• Server room- leak from outside- temporary fix at this time with a rubber coating 
• Several roof leaks- had contractor here to fix; still ongoing issue 
• Security alarm problem- copper line ruined; solution to bring in a fiber optic telephone lines; Mr. Henriquez will 

arrange to order this. 
• Phone in elevator needs to be repaired immediately 

Director of Operations Report- S. Henriquez 

• Met with energy efficiency consultant for High School-Mr. LaGuerre recommended to get a proposal 
• Arranged for removal of pews from the church building- Mr. LaGuerre advised to donate the aluminum cross 
• Violations for broken sidewalk at 76 Locust Hill; Frank Raho was called to make repairs to the sidewalk and repair 

the fence here at CSEE. 
• Authorized notice of bid for $34,000 of IT equipment for temporary high school information 

BoostEd Finance Report-P. Augello 

• Base Per Pupil revenue is above budget at this point. The actual revenue recorded is based upon the February 1st 
billable enrollment of the 754 students. The budgeted enrollment for the year is 714. 

• Budget will be revised with the new consultant position added 
• Finding ways to cut high school construction cost and arranging staffing model. 

PTO Report- Lisbel Rosario 
• Paint night- March 15th 
• February Event- Arts & Crafts for kids and African dance- 25 attendees 

Motion to Adjourn- 8:22 pm 
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Board of Trustees Meeting 
March 20, 2019 

Attendance: E. LaGuerre, S. Cruz, Nadine Burns-Lyons, Carlos Medina, Dr. James Stenerson, Lisbel Rosario 
Absent: Jim Killoran 
Present Non-Board Member: J. Jacaruso, J. Spina, D. Rendina, 

Call to order: 6:11 PM 

Welcome and Introductory Remarks – E. LaGuerre 
• Mr. LaGuerre welcomes everyone and requests to alter the agenda for tonight’s Board of Trustees meeting as there 

is City of Yonkers Planning Board meeting this evening in which Mrs. Lopez, Mrs. Goldberg and Mr. LaGuerre 
will be presenting at. Recognized that quorum is present. 

ACTION ITEMS 

Resolution 54 2018-2019: Adoption of February 26, 2019 Board of Trustee meeting minutes 

RESOLVED, the Board of Trustees moves to adopt the Board of Trustee meeting minutes for the February 26, 2019 Board 
of Trustees meeting. 

Motioned by: C. Medina 
Seconded by: J. Stenerson 
Discussion: None 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED MARCH 20, 2019 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

RESOLUTION 55 2018-2019 Authorization to Contract with Logicalis 

RESOLVED, the CSEE Board of Trustees authorizes a contract with Logicalis in the amount of $34,717 to provide IT 
equipment for existing facilities and the temporary high school site including a load balancing router, Wireless Access 
Protocol devices, and a firewall which are eligible for e-rate subsidy. 

Motioned by: J. Stenerson 
Seconded by: S. Cruz 
Discussion: Addendum to the resolution presented- This was all in consultation with CSEE’s existing A/V consultant and 
Edit and that three bids were submitted. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED MARCH 20, 2019 

Attest: 
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By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

RESOLUTION 56 2018-2019 Authorization to Contract with Crown Castle 

RESOLVED, the CSEE Board of Trustees authorizes a contract with Crown Castle for fiber optic internet service at the 
temporary high school location at cost of $749 per month, for a term of two years, which service is eligible for e-rate subsidy. 

Motioned by: S. Cruz 
Seconded by: C. Medina 
Discussion: None 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED MARCH 20, 2019 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 
Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Community Open Forum-Ms. Cruz provided opportunity for the public to address the board. No comments were made 
from the community. 

Informational Items 
Executive Committee Report-Tabled 

Finance Report- S. Cruz 

• June 11th- Beats & Bytes Event; looking to contract with Rose Cappa; contract to be voted on for next board of 
trustees meeting. 

• All credit card statements expenses have been reviewed; Spiral account statements reviewed 
• Designer Handbag Bingo- December 7th 

Academic Report- Tabled 

Facilities Report- Presented by S. Cruz 

• Planning Board of City of Yonkers-meeting is taking place this evening 
• Asbestos being removed and demolition has begun 

Principals Report- Presented by J. Jacaruso 

• March 12- (half-day)- K-2 teachers participated in professional development with Dr. Marrero (science); 3-8 
teachers graded short/extended responses 

• Reviewed and corrected parent survey (English/Spanish)- survey will be administered during parent teacher 
conferences on March 29- Trustees requested they receive the Parent Survey Results. 

• Total applications thus far- 503 (deadline March 26) – Trustee requested numbers of how many applications were 
received from outside of Yonkers. 

• Update to 8th graders below grade level- giving students extra I-ready sessions; and after school support. 

Superintendent of Facilities Report-Tabled 
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BoostEd Finance Report-P. Augello 

• Base Per Pupil revenue is above budget at this point. The actual revenue recorded is based upon the February 1st 
billable enrollment of 754 students. The budgeted enrollment for the year is 714. Therefore, there is a large positive 
variance for the year to date period. 

• Applauded staff for keeping enrollment up which drives the budget. 

PTO Report- Lisbel Rosario 
• March meeting 10 parents in attendance 
• Paint night will be rescheduled 
• Looking for parent volunteers to host a Spring Dance 
• Partnering with the Athletics Program to take a trip to a Yankee Game 

Special Announcements 

• Thank you to Mr. DeSimone for getting the school publicity in the Hospital for Special Surgery Promotional Video. 
• Ms. Cruz congratulates the staff on Sean Smith who is doing very well in basketball at Manhattanville College. 

Motion to Adjourn- 6:40 pm 
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Board of Trustees Meeting 
April 9, 2019 

Attendance: E. LaGuerre, S. Cruz, Nadine Burns-Lyons, Carlos Medina, Dr. James Stenerson, Jim Killoran Lisbel Rosario 
Absent: 
Present Non-Board Member: C. Lopez, J. Jacaruso, J. Spina, D. Palmer, C. Goldberg, P. Auguello, 
D. Rendina 

Call to order: 6:10 PM 

Welcome and Introductory Remarks – E. LaGuerre 
• Mr. LaGuerre welcomes everyone to tonight’s meetings and provides an update on the High School project-

Committee meets every Monday to go through all the phases of the development for the high school project. 
Preparing for the next Yonkers Planning Board Meeting on April 10 at 5:30pm. Cost of project has been reduced 
significantly. Next phase of the development is the submission of the application to the IDA. There is an opportunity 
for the school to get funds through New Market Tax Credit, which a portion of the money is designated as a grant 
to the school. This would help to reduce the bond portion significantly. 

• Mr. LaGuerre did a site visit of the demolition and abatement; unfortunately additional asbestos was found; looking 
to remediate and will be completed in 5-6 weeks and demolition can start and take about 4 weeks. 

Community Open Forum-Mr. Laguerre provided opportunity for the public to address the board. No comments were made 
from the community. 

ACTION ITEMS 

Resolution 57 2018-2019: Adoption of March 20, 2019 Board of Trustee meeting minutes 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees moves to adopt the Board of Trustee meeting minutes for the March 20, 2019 Board 
of Trustees meeting. 

Motioned by: J. Stenerson 
Seconded by: L. Rosario 
Discussion: None 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED APRIL 9, 2019 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 

Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 58 2018-2019: Authorization of Contract with Cappa Crucy & Company, Inc. 

RESOLVED: The Charter School of Educational Excellence Board of Trustees moves to authorize a contract in the amount 
of Seven Thousand Dollars ($7,000) with Cappa Crucy & Company, Inc. to provide event planning and support services 
for the June 2019 Beats and Bytes fundraiser. In addition to the cost of services provided, the contract shall permit payment 
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for disbursements approved by the Charter School of Educational Excellence for costs including photocopying, postage, 
and the production of event materials. The cost of this contract is to be paid with money in the Spiral Fundraising Account 
at Customers Bank. 

Motioned by: J. Stenerson 
Seconded by: C. Medina 
Discussions: Beats and Bites is scheduled for June 11th 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED APRIL 9, 2019 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 

Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 59 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with edIT Support Technology Services for IT Management 
Services 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees authorizes the Charter School of Educational Excellence to renew its contract for IT 
Management Services with edIT Support Technology Services for the 2020 and 2021 fiscal years. The 2020 fee is based 
upon the present contract scope of work at a price of Nine Thousand Dollars ($9,000.00) per month or One Hundred Eight 
Thousand Dollars ($108,000.00) for the year. The 2021 fiscal year fee will be increased by 2% to perform the contract 
scope of work at a price of One Hundred Ten Thousand One Hundred and Sixty Dollars ($110,160.00) for the year. This 
excludes any out-of-scope work edIT is directed to perform. 

Motioned by: J. Stenerson 
Seconded by: C. Medina 
Discussions: EdIT service is excellent; no need to investigate for a new company; renewal for two years 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED APRIL 9, 2019 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 

Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 60 2018-2019: Authorization for CSEE to renew the contract with CANON for the lease and service 
agreement for multi-function printer/copiers. 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees authorizes the Charter School of Educational Excellence to renew its contract with 
CANON, Inc. for equipment lease and service agreement for 36 months at $4,540.00 per month. Not to exceed $55,000.00 
annually. 

Motioned by: J. Stenerson 
Seconded by: S. Cruz 
Discussions: Extending the existing contract-, four under used units will be brought over to St. Bart’s at no charge; 14 new 
units to replace old ones; overall contract down by 20%; this includes a service contract. 
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Votes for and Against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED APRIL 9, 2019 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 

Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 62 2018-2019: Authorization to retain Stephan J. Henriquez to provide legal services as Counsel to the 
Charter School of Educational Excellence. 

RESOLVED: Pursuant to Resolution 53 2018-2019, the Board of Trustees authorizes a retainer agreement with Stephan J. 
Henriquez (“Counsel”) to provide legal services in representation of the Charter School of Educational Excellence (“CSEE”) 
in support of the work of CSEE to finance, construct or improve high school and existing K-8 school facilities, and its 
operations and governance for a period of four months starting on March 1, 2019. Pursuant to the retainer agreement, 
Counsel shall be available 40 hours a month to CSEE to provide legal representation, or support for operational activities 
for a fee of $5,000 per month. Hours worked in excess of 40 hours per month shall be billed at $125 per hour. Disbursements 
shall be billed at cost. 

Motioned by: C. Medina 
Seconded by: S. Cruz 
Discussion: None 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED APRIL 9, 2019 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 

Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 63 2018-2019: Authorization for CSEE to modify the school year calendar in order to provide additional 
professional development for staff. 

RESOLVED: The Charter School of Educational Excellence Board of Trustees moves to authorize a modification to the 
school year calendar. Students will be dismissed at 12:00 pm (Half-Day of school) June 11, 2019, in order for CSEE staff 
to participate in professional development. 

Motioned by: S. Cruz 
Seconded by: C. Medina 
Discussion: None 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED APRIL 9, 2019 

Attest: 
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By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 

Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Informational Items 
Executive Committee Report-E. LaGuerre 

• There is a need to create a special purpose entity to be added to the school, unfortunately, legal counsel was spoken 
too and CSEE is waiting for the proper language to write a resolution to create another 501C3 and help the school 
with reliving some of the cost associated with the construction and development of the high school and could be 
used for fundraising. 

Executive Session-
Commenced 6:35pm 
Concluded- 7:00pm 

Resolution 64 2018-2019: Authorization to appoint Principal Cindy V. Lopez to Superintendent CEO of schools. 

RESOLVED: The Charter School of Educational Excellence Board of Trustees moves to appoint Cindy V. Lopez as the 
Charter School of Educational Excellence Superintendent CEO of Schools. 

Motioned by: S. Cruz 
Seconded by: N. Burns-Lyons 
Discussion: Trustees described Mrs. Lopez as a dedicated and remarkable person who is committed to the school, students, 
parents, and community. She is a very good leader and stands for what she believes. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED APRIL 9, 2019 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 

Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 65 2018-2019: Authorization to appoint Mrs. Jennifer Spina as Kindergarten-4th grade Elementary 
School Principal, Mrs. Jessica Jacaruso as 5th-8th grade Middle School Principal, and Mr. Dwain Palmer 9th-12th 
grade High School Principal effective July 1, 2019. 

RESOLVED: The Charter School of Educational Excellence Board of Trustees moves to appoint Mrs. Jennifer Spina as 
Kindergarten-4th grade Elementary School Principal, Mrs. Jessica Jacaruso as 5th-8th grade Middle School Principal, and 
Mr. Dwain Palmer 9th-12th grade High School Principal effective July 1, 2019. 

Motioned by: S. Cruz 
Seconded by: J. Stenerson 
Discussion: Trustees stated they are ready to see this team take the school to the next level. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 
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PASSED AND ADOPTED APRIL 9, 2019 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 

Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

• Mr. LaGuerre asked for a press release to be done; all stationary changed, and website updated. 

Finance Report- S. Cruz 

• Credit card statements reviewed as well as checks paid out to vendors for review. 
• Received $4,400 from Customers Bank as a donation. 
• Beats & Bites-June 11th $125.00 per ticket 

o 1 partner honoree- Hospital for Special Surgery- looking for other honorees 
o Journal (ad) Sales for monthly calendar 
o Discounts for parents- To be determined 
o Focus on the high school with culinary, automotive, hospitality- work force development 

Academic Report- J. Stenerson 

• Working with Mrs. Lopez on High School curriculum, which will be discussed in full detail during the Board of 
Trustees Retreat. 

• Met with furniture vendor 

Facilities Report- E. LaGuerre 

• Gave briefing during welcome remarks 

Principals Report- C. Lopez 

• Great turn out with our Scholastic Book Fair- $3,100.00 in scholastic dollars 
• K-9 informational sessions held at CSEE for perspective parents; Next steps: Attendance at Westchester 

Children’s Book Festival in White Plains; May 5, 9-2 pm 
• Lottery - Tuesday, April 9th at 9:00 am. Outside consultant helped with lottery process 
• Reviewing procedures for operations department; food nutrition program, safety and vendor contracts. 
• First time Students in grades 3-8 participated Computer Based Testing (CBT) for English Language Arts 

Superintendent of Facilities Report-D. Pagan 

• 3 broken windows and door at Locust Hill location; now boarded up and gate fixed. 

BoostEd Finance Report-P. Augello 

• Base Per Pupil revenue is above budget at this point. The actual revenue recorded is based upon the April 1st billable 
enrollment of 753.907 students. The budgeted enrollment for the year is 714. Therefore, there is a large positive 
variance for the year to date period. 

• Discuss strategies with principal for submission on application 

PTO Report- Lisbel Rosario 
• Winter program concluded- focused on wellness, fitness, nutrition, financial wellness. Very well participated by 

parents. Pictures are on PTO website. 
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• Spring programs- Mother’s Day sale, Spring Dance grades 6th-8th May 17th, PTO meeting tomorrow night, Mets 
game May 24. 

• Mr. Killoran to email Mrs. Goldberg information about tickets to the Circus. 

Motion to Adjourn- 7:40 pm 

Board of Trustees Meeting 
May 18, 2019 

Attendance: E. LaGuerre, S. Cruz, Dr. James Stenerson, Nadine Burns-Lyons, Jim Killoran, Lisbel Rosario 
Absent: Carlos Medina 
Present Non-Board Member: C. Lopez, J. Jacaruso, J. Spina, D. Palmer, D. Rendina, C. Goldberg, M. DeSimone, Eleana 
LaGuerre, 

Call to order: 1:20 PM 

Welcome and Introductory Remarks – E. LaGuerre 
• Mr. LaGuerre states that the Board of Trustees Retreat was very productive which was held prior to this meeting; 

unfortunately, the two new nominees for Board of Trustees had prior commitments and we unable to attend, 
however they are invited to the next Board of Trustees meeting June 14, 2019. 

Community Open Forum-Mr. LaGuerre provided opportunity for the public to address the board. No comments were 
made from the community. 

ACTION ITEMS 

Resolution 64 2018-2019: Adoption of April 9, 2019 Board of Trustee meeting minutes 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees moves to adopt the Board of Trustee meeting minutes for the April 9, 2019 Board of 
Trustees meeting. 

Motioned by: J. Killoran 
Seconded by: S. Cruz 
Discussion: None 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED MAY 18, 2019 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 

Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 65 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with Lamb Insurance to perform an audit of all commercial 
insurance policies related to the operating of the Charter School of Educational Excellence and the proposed 
development project. 
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RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees authorizes the Charter School of Educational Excellence to contract with Lamb 
Insurance to perform an audit of all commercial insurance policies related to the operating of the Charter School of 
Educational Excellence and the proposed development project. Lamb Insurance will audit and comment on the contractual 
insurance language and coverage provided by the participating General Contractors for the proposed development project. 
Lamb Insurance will be allowed to participate in a bid process for the renewal of the current insurance policy and or for the 
proposed development project. The fee for these services is $2,500.00 payable at the completion of procuring coverage for 
the proposed development project. 

Motioned by: S. Cruz 
Seconded by: J. Killoran 
Discussion: None 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED MAY 18, 2019 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 

Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 66 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with Dr.Meghan Marrero for science academic support services. 

Resolved: The Board of Trustees authorizes the Charter School of Educational Excellence to contract with Dr. Meghan 
Marrero for academic support services for science during the 2020 fiscal year at the hourly rate of $112.50 per hour for no 
more than 175 hours of service for the school year. 

Motioned by: L. Rosario 
Seconded by: J. Stenerson 
Discussion: Mrs. Lopez informs the trustees that Dr. Marrero has been with us for many years working with the science 
curriculum, science based learning, brings in hands on science activities she also will be working with the new high school 
science teacher. No change to contract. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED MAY 18, 2019 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 

Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 67 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with Gary Bergman Consulting, Inc. for student information, 
master schedule and student lottery data management and technical assistance services. 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees authorizes the Charter School of Educational Excellence to contract with Gary 
Bergman Consulting, Inc. for student information, master schedule and student lottery data management and technical 
assistance services for the 2020 fiscal year at an hourly rate of $115.00 for no more than 200 hours of service for the school 
year. 
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Motioned by: J. Stenerson 
Seconded by: L. Rosario 
Discussion: Mrs. Lopez informs the trustees that Mr. Bergman does extensive work with student schedules, compliance 
with state data, state assessments; 20 hours were added to contract due to developing high school master schedule. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED MAY 18, 2019 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 

Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 68 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with Richard Trauner for special education academic support 
services. 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees authorizes the Charter School of Educational Excellence to contract with Richard 
Trauner for special education academic support services for the 2020 fiscal year at the rate of $700 per day for up to 20 days 
for the school year. 

Motioned by: J. Stenerson 
Seconded by: S. Cruz 
Discussion: Mrs. Lopez informs the trustees that Mr. Trauner comes to the school twice a month and works specifically on 
Special Education paperwork for the school (IEP, 504s). No change to contract. 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED MAY 18, 2019 

Attest: 

By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 

Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Resolution 69 2018-2019: Authorization to contract with the Center for Educational Funding for grants management 
services. 

RESOLVED: The Board of Trustees authorizes a contract renewal with the Center for Educational Funding for grants 
management services for FS-10 Budgets and the Every Student Succeeds Act at a price of $9,000 for the 2020 fiscal year. 

Motioned by: S. Cruz 
Seconded by: J. Killoran 
Discussion: Mrs. Lopez informs trustees that this contract is for Mr. Brinkman who helps the school with Title I and II 
grants. Contract went up by $200.00 
Votes for and against: Unanimously passed 

PASSED AND ADOPTED MAY 18, 2019 

Attest: 
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By:______________________________ Date:_____________________ 

Nadine Burns-Lyons 
Secretary, Charter School of Educational Excellence 

Informational Items 
Finance Report- S. Cruz 

• Beats & Bites- June 11th 
• Need more support with getting sponsors and guests to the event; selling journal ads; auction items; tricky tray 

items. 
• Raised $25,000.00 thus far. 
• Information backpacked home with students; Mrs. Goldberg to send invitation electronically to board members. 

Academic Report- J. Stenerson 

• Working on the proposed budget for temporary location as well as the needs for next academic school year. 
• E-Rate has been approved 

Facilities Report- E. LaGuerre 

• Facilities committee meets every Monday; City of Yonkers Planning Board passed resolution unanimously 
• Demolition should begin in the next 3 weeks. Mr. Killoran requested a list of needs for updating temporary location 

at St. Bartholomew. 

Principals Report- C. Lopez 

• CSEE High School- working on curriculum, finance, and interviewing teachers 
• Celebrated Staff Appreciation week- PTO sponsored lunch 
• The Kind Project-students participated in a workshop 
• Applied for Facility improvements grant- through SUNY waiting on response. 
• Reviewing and updating policies- safety procedures, code of conduct, and parent handbook. 
• Meeting with parents of students who are not on grade level. 
• Looking for more room in the building, explore the options of PODS to hold items from Resource Room. 
• Issues with Child Nutrition Reimbursement-money lost due to negligence. 

Building Facility Director Report- D. Pagan/C. Lopez 

• Short staffed and preparing building for Civic Builders visit and NYSED visit. 

BoostEd Finance Report-Submitted by P. Augello 

PTO Report- Lisbel Rosario 
• Spring dance well attended by 5th-8th graders 
• Father’s Day Sale- June 14th and 15th 
• Used Uniform sale- last day of school 
• Field day- will be following up with Phys. Ed. Team 
• May 24th-Met’s game $40 with food voucher. 
• Looking forward to incorporate 9th grade parents for next year. 

Motion to Adjourn- 2:02 pm 
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Entry 10 Enrollment and Retention of Special 
Populations 
Last updated: 07/21/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies 

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2018 19 toward meeting targets to attract and retain 

enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners/Multilingual learners, and students who 

are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress 

toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 2019 20. 

CHARTER SCHOOL OF EDUCATIONAL EXCELLENCESection Heading 

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 2018 19 

Presentations and applications left at all local
churches, businesses, daycare centers and
community organizations, which are
designated as economically disadvantaged,
as per the most recent census. 

Applications also delivered to the YMCA,Econom Public Libraries, and supermarkets. ically
Disadva Attendance at several community functionsntaged including Community Cleanup, parades,

school fairs, street fairs, National Night Out,
in order to meet and speak with potential ED 
parents. 

Advertisements in the newspaper and local
television channels. 

Aligned with the charter law, CSEE is
committed to making good faith efforts to
attract and retain a comparable or greater
enrollment of students with disabilities 
and/or ELLs when compared to the
enrollment figures of the local district,
Yonkers Public Schools and Bronx. Any child
is eligible for admission to CSEE including
ELL students, and students with 
disabilities/IEPs. CSEE ensures that such
students are welcomed and served in a 

Describe Recruitment Plans in 2019 20 

Presentations and applications left at all local
churches, businesses, daycare centers and
community organizations, which are
designated as economically disadvantaged,
as per the most recent census. 

Applications also delivered to the YMCA,
Public Libraries, and supermarkets. 

Attendance at several community functions
including Community Cleanup, parades,
school fairs, street fairs, National Night Out,
in order to meet and speak with potential ED 
parents. 

Advertisements in the newspaper and local
television channels. 

Aligned with the charter law, CSEE is
committed to making good faith efforts to
attract and retain a comparable or greater
enrollment of students with disabilities 
and/or ELLs when compared to the
enrollment figures of the local district,
Yonkers Public Schools and Bronx. Any child
is eligible for admission to CSEE including
ELL students, and students with 
disabilities/IEPs. CSEE ensures that such
students are welcomed and served in a 
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supportive and effective manner. 

The enrollment team and staff of CSEE 
utilizes the following strategies to attract
students with disabilities and English
Language Learners including: 

• CSEE partners with local daycare/learning
centers / preschools to determine ways that
students with disabilities can be identify as
early as possible. CSEE meets with parentsEnglish to promote its program and discuss that it isLangua enrollment is available to all students; ge • CSEE holds meetings in English andLearner Spanish;s/Multili • CSEE holds recruitment/enrollmentngual meetings are local non for profits,Learner community organizations, Yonkers Publics Libraries, YMCA, fairs, to connect with 
potential ELL and SWD Families;
• CSEE pays for Half page advertisement in
the following papers: Yonkers Rising,
Westchester Hispano, LoHud and other
online papers;
• Marketing materials highlight the program
information; 
• Marketing materials that contain a
description of the special education program
(Resource Room) and related services
(Speech, Occupational, Counseling, Vision,
Physical therapy) that CSEE provides directly
and those that will be provided by the
student’s district of residence or other 
provider;
• CSEE utilizes one individual (Special
Education Director) to oversee the provisions
of special education program and services,
and to be available during recruitment and
enrollment to answer questions;
• Marketing material translated into Spanish
to attract English Language Learners 

Aligned with the charter law, CSEE is
committed to making good faith efforts to
attract and retain a comparable or greater
enrollment of students with disabilities 
and/or ELLs when compared to the
enrollment figures of the local district,
Yonkers Public Schools and Bronx. Any child
is eligible for admission to CSEE including
ELL students, and students with 
disabilities/IEPs. CSEE ensures that such
students are welcomed and served in a 

supportive and effective manner. 

The enrollment team and staff of CSEE 
utilizes the following strategies to attract
students with disabilities and English
Language Learners including: 

• CSEE partners with local daycare/learning
centers / preschools to determine ways that
students with disabilities can be identify as
early as possible. CSEE meets with parents to
promote its program and discuss that it is
enrollment is available to all students; 
• CSEE holds meetings in English and
Spanish;
• CSEE holds recruitment/enrollment
meetings are local non for profits, community
organizations, Yonkers Public Libraries, YMCA,
fairs, to connect with potential ELL and SWD
Families; 
• CSEE pays for Half page advertisement in
the following papers: Yonkers Rising,
Westchester Hispano, LoHud and other online 
papers;
• Marketing materials highlight the program
information; 
• Marketing materials that contain a
description of the special education program
(Resource Room) and related services
(Speech, Occupational, Counseling, Vision,
Physical therapy) that CSEE provides directly
and those that will be provided by the
student’s district of residence or other 
provider;
• CSEE utilizes one individual (Special
Education Director) to oversee the provisions
of special education program and services,
and to be available during recruitment and
enrollment to answer questions;
• Marketing material translated into Spanish
to attract English Language Learners 

Aligned with the charter law, CSEE is
committed to making good faith efforts to
attract and retain a comparable or greater
enrollment of students with disabilities 
and/or ELLs when compared to the
enrollment figures of the local district,
Yonkers Public Schools and Bronx. Any child
is eligible for admission to CSEE including
ELL students, and students with 
disabilities/IEPs. CSEE ensures that such
students are welcomed and served in a 
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supportive and effective manner. 

The enrollment team and staff of CSEE 
utilizes the following strategies to attract
students with disabilities and English
Language Learners including: 

• CSEE partners with local daycare/learning
centers / preschools to determine ways that
students with disabilities can be identify as
early as possible. CSEE meets with parents
to promote its program and discuss that it is
enrollment is available to all students; Student • CSEE holds meetings in English ands with Spanish;Disabilit • CSEE holds recruitment/enrollmenties meetings are local non for profits,
community organizations, Yonkers Public
Libraries, YMCA, fairs, to connect with 
potential ELL and SWD Families;
• CSEE pays for Half page advertisement in
the following papers: Yonkers Rising,
Westchester Hispano, LoHud and other
online papers;
• Marketing materials highlight the program
information; 
• Marketing materials that contain a
description of the special education program
(Resource Room) and related services
(Speech, Occupational, Counseling, Vision,
Physical therapy) that CSEE provides directly
and those that will be provided by the
student’s district of residence or other 
provider;
• CSEE utilizes one individual (Special
Education Director) to oversee the provisions
of special education program and services,
and to be available during recruitment and
enrollment to answer questions;
• Marketing material translated into Spanish
to attract English Language Learners 

supportive and effective manner. 

The enrollment team and staff of CSEE 
utilizes the following strategies to attract
students with disabilities and English
Language Learners including: 

• CSEE partners with local daycare/learning
centers / preschools to determine ways that
students with disabilities can be identify as
early as possible. CSEE meets with parents to
promote its program and discuss that it is
enrollment is available to all students; 
• CSEE holds meetings in English and
Spanish;
• CSEE holds recruitment/enrollment
meetings are local non for profits, community
organizations, Yonkers Public Libraries, YMCA,
fairs, to connect with potential ELL and SWD
Families; 
• CSEE pays for Half page advertisement in
the following papers: Yonkers Rising,
Westchester Hispano, LoHud and other online 
papers;
• Marketing materials highlight the program
information; 
• Marketing materials that contain a
description of the special education program
(Resource Room) and related services
(Speech, Occupational, Counseling, Vision,
Physical therapy) that CSEE provides directly
and those that will be provided by the
student’s district of residence or other 
provider;
• CSEE utilizes one individual (Special
Education Director) to oversee the provisions
of special education program and services,
and to be available during recruitment and
enrollment to answer questions;
• Marketing material translated into Spanish
to attract English Language Learners 

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Retention Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Retention Plans in 2019 20 

A very high percentage of students attending
CSEE are eligible for free/reduced lunch
(usually between 85 86% of the student
body). In order to better serve and retain our
student population the school has
consistently made available to all students
breakfast, lunch, & a snack throughout the 

The director of government, parents and
external relations leads CSEE’s enrollment 
initiatives. The formal recruitment ran from 
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Econom day. CSEE also provides an extended day
ically program where students stay to receive
Disadva instruction/support from 8:00am 4:00pm. 
ntaged 

The school building opens at 7:00 am for
those students who need to be dropped off
earlier due to parent’s work
hours/obligations. Additionally, students
have the option of attending the afterschool
program until 6:00pm. 

CSEE also provides the following in order to
retain ELLs and Special Education Students: 

• The school employs, a special education
director, who is responsible for coordinating
with CSEs; providing information to and
obtaining information from CSEs as needed
throughout the year; determining if entering
students have IEPS; and working with CSE’s
and school districts to ensure that all English required special education and relatedLangua services are being provided and that all IEPsge are appropriate in the context of the charterLearner school setting.s/Multili • CSEE makes available, as required by law,ngual a student’s regular and special educationLearner teacher (and other required schools personnel) for meetings convened by such
student’s CSE, and provide such teachers
and personnel with copies of the student’s
IEP. 
• CSEE ensures that parents of children with
special needs are informed of how their
children are progressing on annual IEP goals
and in the general curriculum at least as
frequently as parents of regular education
children. 

CSEE also provides the following in order to
retain ELLs and Special Education Students: 

• The school employs, a special education
director, who is responsible for coordinating
with CSEs; providing information to and
obtaining information from CSEs as needed
throughout the year; determining if entering
students have IEPS; and working with CSE’s
and school districts to ensure that all 
required special education and related
services are being provided and that all IEPsStudent are appropriate in the context of the charters with school setting. 

January  April, and during this time the
director went to community organizations,
groups, and businesses to ensure that the
Yonkers community was aware that CSEE is a
high quality, public school option for all
students; ELLs, SWD, and economically
disadvantaged. 

CSEE also provides the following in order to
retain ELLs and Special Education Students: 

• The school employs, a special education
director, who is responsible for coordinating
with CSEs; providing information to and
obtaining information from CSEs as needed
throughout the year; determining if entering
students have IEPS; and working with CSE’s
and school districts to ensure that all 
required special education and related
services are being provided and that all IEPs
are appropriate in the context of the charter
school setting.
• CSEE makes available, as required by law,
a student’s regular and special education
teacher (and other required school
personnel) for meetings convened by such
student’s CSE, and provide such teachers
and personnel with copies of the student’s
IEP. 
• CSEE ensures that parents of children with
special needs are informed of how their
children are progressing on annual IEP goals
and in the general curriculum at least as
frequently as parents of regular education
children. 

CSEE also provides the following in order to
retain ELLs and Special Education Students: 

• The school employs, a special education
director, who is responsible for coordinating
with CSEs; providing information to and
obtaining information from CSEs as needed
throughout the year; determining if entering
students have IEPS; and working with CSE’s
and school districts to ensure that all 
required special education and related
services are being provided and that all IEPs
are appropriate in the context of the charter
school setting. 
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Disabilit • CSEE makes available, as required by law,
ies a student’s regular and special education

teacher (and other required school
personnel) for meetings convened by such
student’s CSE, and provide such teachers
and personnel with copies of the student’s
IEP. 
• CSEE ensures that parents of children with
special needs are informed of how their
children are progressing on annual IEP goals
and in the general curriculum at least as
frequently as parents of regular education
children. 

• CSEE makes available, as required by law,
a student’s regular and special education
teacher (and other required school
personnel) for meetings convened by such
student’s CSE, and provide such teachers
and personnel with copies of the student’s
IEP. 
• CSEE ensures that parents of children with
special needs are informed of how their
children are progressing on annual IEP goals
and in the general curriculum at least as
frequently as parents of regular education
children. 
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Entry 11 Classroom Teacher and Administrator 

Attrition 
Last updated: 07/02/2019 

Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing. 

Instructions for completing the Classroom Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables 

Charter schools must complete the tables titled 2018-2019 Classroom Teacher and 

Administrator Attrition to report changes in teacher and administrator staffing 

during the 2018-2019 school year. Please provide the full time equivalent (FTE) of 

staff on June 30, 2018; the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2018 through June 

30, 2019; the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; and the 

FTE of staff added in newly created positions from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 

using the tables provided. 

1. Classroom Teacher Attrition Table 

FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom 
Teachers on 
6/30/18 

Teachers 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

Teachers Filling
Vacant Positions 
7/1/18  6/30/19 

41 6 8 

2. Administrator Position Attrition Table 

FTE 
Administrative 
Positions on 
6/30/18 

4 

FTE 
Administrators 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

1 

FTE 
Administrators 
Filling Vacant
Positions 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

1 

FTE Classroom FTE of 
Teachers Added Classroom 
in New Positions Teachers on 
7/1/18 6/30/19 6/3019 

2 40 

FTE FTE 
Administrators Administrative 
Added in New Positions on 
Positions 7/1/18

6/30/19 
6/30/19 

0 4 
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3. Tell your school's story 

Charter schools may provide additional information in this section of the Annual 
Report about their respective teacher and administrator attrition rates as some 

teacher or administrator departures do not reflect advancement or movement within 

the charter school networks. Schools may provide additional detail to reflect a 

teacher’s advancement up the ladder to a leadership position within the network or 

an administrator’s movement to lead a new network charter school. 

Attrition rates at CSEE have consistently remained under 15% annually. As we strive to provide a 

competitive salary, benefits package, NYS Retirement plan, etc., it is not always as compelling as our 

neighboring school districts. 

4. Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees receive clearance 

through the NYSED Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) 

prior to employment. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to 

maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all 
students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of 

individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been 

terminated, the school must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH 

system. 

Have all employees have been cleared through the NYSED TEACH system? 

Yes 

5. For perspective or current employees whose clearance has been denied, have you 

terminated their employment and removed them from the TEACH system? 

Not Applicable 

Thank you 
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Entry 12 Uncertified Teachers 
Last updated: 07/31/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified Teachers 

The table below is reflective of the information collected through the online portal for 
compliance with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff 
qualifications. Enter the relevant full time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each 

column. For example, a school with 20 full time teachers and 5 half time teachers 

would have an FTE count of 22.5. If more than one column applies to a particular 
teacher, please select one column for the FTE count. Please do not include 

paraprofessionals, such as teacher assistants. 

FTE count of uncertified teachers on 6/30/18, and each uncertified teacher should be 

counted only once. 

1. Total FTE count of uncertified teachers (6 30 19) 

2. FTE count of uncertified teachers with at least three years
of elementary, middle or secondary classroom teaching
experience (6 30 19) 

3. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are tenured or 
tenure track college faculty (6 30 19) 

4. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years of Teach
for America experience (6 30 19) 

5. FTE count of uncertified teachers with exceptional
business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military
experience (6 30 19) 

6. FTE count of uncertified teachers who do not fit into any
of the prior four categories (6 30 19) 

FTE Count of All Uncertified 

Teachers as of 6/30/19 

2 

FTE Count of All Certified 

Teachers as of 6/30/19 

38 

Thank you. 

FTE Count 

2 

2 

0 

0 

0 

0 
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Charter School of Educational Excellence 

2018-2019 School Year Calendar DRAFT 

July 2019 
Su M Tu W Th F Sa 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30 31 

July 
4 Thursday Independence day 

August 2019 
Su M Tu W Th F Sa 

1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 

August 
19-30 Professional Deveopement - ALL TEACHING STAFF REPORT TO SCHOOL 

20 Board Meeting 

September 2019 
Su M Tu W Th F Sa 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30 

September 

2 School/Central Office Closed - Labor Day 

5 All students report to school - Full Day for students and staff 

12 Board Meeting 

18 Open House for High School Parents and Students 

19 Open House for K-8 Parents and Students 

30 School/Central Office Closed - Rosh Hashanah 

October 2019 
Su M Tu W Th F Sa 

1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

27 28 29 30 31 

October 
1 School/Central Office Closed - Rosh Hashanah 

9 School/Central Office Closed - Yom Kippur 

10 Board Meeting 

14 School/Central Office Closed - Columbus Day 

22 Half Day for Students - Staff Professional Development 

November 2019 
Su M Tu W Th F Sa 

1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

November 
5 School Closed for Students - Election Day 

11 School/Central Office Closed - Veterans' Day 

19 Board Meeting 

19 Half Day for Students - Staff Professional Development 

27 Half Day for Students - Staff Professional Development 

28-29 School/Central Office Closed - Thanksgiving Recess 

Calendar Template by Vertex42.com http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/school-calendar.html 



 

  

  

 

  

   

DecemberDecember 2019 
Su M Tu W Th F Sa 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30 31 

12 Board Meeting 
Half Day for students - Parent/Teacher Conferences 13 

23-31 School Closed - Holiday Recess 

24-25 Central Office Closed (Christmas Day 12/25) 

January 2020 
Su M Tu W Th F Sa 

1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30 31 

January 
1 School/Central Office Closed - New Year's Day 

2 School Reopen - ALL Students Report to School 

9 Board Meeting 

14 Half Day for Students - Staff Professional Development 

20 School/Central Office Closed - Martin Luther King, Jr. Day 

February 2020 
Su M Tu W Th F Sa 

1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

February 
11 Half Day for Students - Staff Professional Development 

13 Board Meeting 

17-21 School Closed - Winter Recess 

17-18 Central Office Closed 

24 School Reopens - ALL Students Report to School 

March 2020 
Su M Tu W Th F Sa 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30 31 

March 
12 Board Meeting 

20 Half Day for students - Parent/Teacher Conferences 

17 Half Day for Students - Staff Professional Development 

24-31 NYS ELA Exams 

April 2020 
Su M Tu W Th F Sa

1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30 

April 
 6-13 School Closed - Spring Recess 

 10-13 Central Office Closed 

14 School Reopens - ALL Students Report to School 

16 Board Meeting 

20-27 NYS Math Exams 

Calendar Template by Vertex42.com http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/school-calendar.html 



  

 

   

   

   

May 
14 Board Meeting 

12 Half Day for Students - Staff Professional Development 

18-29 New York State 4th Grade SCIENCE EXAM - PERFORMANCE 

22-25 School/Central Office Closed - Memorial Day Weekend 

May 2020 
Su M Tu W Th F Sa 

1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

31 

June 2020 

Su M Tu W Th F Sa 
1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30 

June 

1 New York State 4th Grade SCIENCE EXAM  - WRITTEN 

11 Board Meeting 

17 REGENTS EXAM - Living Environment 

18 REGENTS EXAM - Algebra 1 

19 REGENTS EXAM -  Earth Science 

23 Kindergarten and 8th Grade Graduation 

24 REGENTS EXAM - Geometry 

25 Half Day for Students 

26 Last Day of School - Half Day for Students 

MAKE-UP DAY CALENDAR - 

Calendar Template by Vertex42.com http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/school-calendar.html 




